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1.2 SITE PLAN
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1.3  BUILDING INDEX

BUILDINGS
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Lobby and Office Building

Clubhouse {Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop)
Kitchen and Dining Building (Kitchen/Bogart Room)
Farrell House

Cottage Building (Maintenance Office/Early Cottages)
Housekeeping Building

Shed Building (Storage Building)

Maintenance Buildings/Storage Extension
Contemporary 2 Story Buildings

(11} — Units 73-81

(12) — Units 68-72

Bungalows (Albert Frey),

(J1) — Bungalow Units 54, 55 and 56

(J2) — Bungalow Units 57, 58 and 59

(J3) - Bungalow Units 60, 61 and 62

{J4) - Bungalow Units 63, 64 and 65

(J5) - Bungalow Unit 66

{J6) — Bungalow Units 32, 33 and 34

(J7) — Bungalow Units 35, 36 and 37

(18) — Bungalow Units 38, 39 and 40

(J9) — Bungalow Units 41, 42 and 43

Schiff House (Albert Frey Addition)
Boardroom Buildings (Albert Frey, Remodeled)
(L1) — Boardroom 1

(L2) — Boardroom 2

SITE FEATURES
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Tennis Courts

Main Pool

Netcher’s Creek
Landscaping and Hardscape
Pool at Cottage (Unit 66)
Spa

CCESSORY STRUCTURES

Security Shack
Netcher’s Creek Covered Footbridge
Gazebo
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2.0 INTRODUCTION
PURPOSE OF REPORT

This historic report was prepared under the direction of Palm Springs Property, LLC at
the request of the City of Palm Springs Planning Department. The purpose of the report
is to provide a greater understanding of the significant character-defining features of the
site, what historic fabric exists and provide some guidance to evaluate potential
development alternatives for the site.

To accomplish this purpose, this report will briefly:

L. Document and analyze the construction history of the Racquet Club.

2. Identify the character-defining features of the site buildings.

3. Provide recommendations for further analysis and treatment of the
features based on the Secretary of Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for
Rehabilitation.

4. Provide a brief analysis of potential development alternatives to the site.

This report 1s intended to be an analysis of character-defining features for each building
and structure at the Racquet Club and a brief documentation of existing conditions and
their integrity. Further documentation of the existing conditions and their integrity may
be required before commencing actual rehabilitation or alterations.

RESEARCH BACKGROUND

In researching the history and significance of the Racquet Club, the following sources of
information were consulted:

For Construction History:

-Search of permit computer database and microfiche at:
City of Palim Springs Building & Safety Department
3200 E Tahquitz Canyon Way
Palm Springs, CA 92262
Phone: (760) 323-8242,

-Search of planning records and historic resource folders at:
City of Palm Springs Department of Planning Service
Andrea Urbas, Principal Planner

3200 E Tahquitz Canyon Way
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Palm Springs, CA 92262
Phone: (760) 323-8245

For Historic Photographs and Plans:

-Search of historic photo and print document archives at:
Jeri Vogelsang
Palm Springs Historical Society
221 8. Palm Canyon Drive
Paim Springs, CA 92262
(760) 323-8297
-Search of photo archives of Julius Shulman (photographer of Albert Frey’s work)
Julius Shulman
(323) 654-0877
Judy McKee (Julius Shulman’s daughter), oversees archive
(805) 965-4113

-Search of photo and plan archives at University Art Museum, University of
California at Santa Barbara (storage archive for Albert Frey’s drawings
and documents).

For Site History:
-Personal interview with former Palm Springs Mayor, Frank Bogert (previous

manager of the Racquet Club and personal friend of Charles Farrell) for
history from 1930°s to present.
-Personal interview with Bemard Rosenson (current owner of Racquet Club) for
history from 1999 to present.
-Search of Riverside County Tax Assessor records.
Accessed through KnowX.com database search
-Search of archives at California Historical Resources Information Systems
Center (No documents on file for subject property)
Eastern Information Center
Department of Anthropology
University of California, Riverside
Riverside, CA 92521
(909) 787-5745

See Bibliography for written books and articles reviewed.
HISTORIC STATUS
The Racquet Club is not listed in the National Register of Historic Places. The State
Office of Historic Preservation does not have a file that lists the site and buildings. The

city of Palm Springs has identified the Racquet Club as a potential historic resource, but
has not officially listed any of the buildings on the city’s historic resource list yet.
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3.1 SITE HISTORY
1930°s

The Racquet Club had its beginnings when two actors, Charlie Farrell and Ralph
Bellamy, purchased 53 acres of land from Alva Hicks for $3,500.00 in 1932. They were
both horseback riding in the area that year and came across a for sale sign. Thinking that
it might be worth something later, they decided to become partners and purchase it.

The two actors were avid tennis players and played at the El Mirador Hotel, which had
some of the only courts available in Palm Springs at that time. Although only guests of
the hotel were allowed to use the courts, they had an agreement with the owner, Warren
Pinney, to allow them to use the courts if guests weren’t using them. However, they lost
those privileges when guests complained that they were constantly using the courts.
They discussed their options over a drink and decided to build a tennis court on the
property they jointly owned.

Farrell and Bellamy contacted the Davis Company, a big swimming pool and tennis court
contractor in Los Angeles. Although their original intent was to build just a single tennis
court, they added a second court when the contractor suggested that it would be cheaper
to install it at the same time. In addition to the tennis courts, they constructed a fence
surrounding them and a visitor’s gallery for spectators. The courts were completed by
December of 1933. They charged their friends a dollar per day to play.?

The facilities quickly grew in 1934 when the 3" and 4™ courts, restrooms, dressing rooms
and a swimming pool were added. Because Bellamy could not afford to keep making
more investments in the property, they decided for form a racquet club and invited 173 of
their friends to join as members. The grand opening for the Racquet Club was December
15, 1934. By the time of the grand opening, a kitchen and dining room and a Bamboo
Bar designed by film director, Mitch Leisen was constructed.*

The Racquet Club quickly became a popular vacationing spot for movie stars and was a
status symbol in the movie industry. At first, there were only four people to respond to
the initial invitation, including Charlie Butterworth, Paul Lucas, Frank Morgan and
Reggie Allen. Soon, many established and aspiring actors and actresses would fill the
club, including Judy Garland, Bing Crosby, Alice Faye and Phil Harris.®

Farrell was offered some movie roles in England and left for two years, leaving Bellamy
to manage the club by himself. Not having enough experience to run a business, he later
hired Frank Bogert as General Manager of the club.® Frank recalls that originally,
members stayed at local hotels nearby. In fact, the only reason that guest residences were
originally built on the property was because of a bank loan he was trying to obtain. The
only way the bank would give the Racquet Club a loan to build additional tennis courts
was if they became a hotel. Consequently, they constructed twelve rental units on the

alm Sprin gt Club Historic Repo cto 004
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north end of the property.7 These units are in what is listed as the Cottage Building in the
Building Index.

Bellamy felt that as long as he was busy running the club, he was losing the opportunity
to get more acting jobs. When Farrell returned from England, Bellamy offered to sell his
share of the Racquet Club for exactly what he put into it. Farrell bought him out and
began running the club with his wife, Virginia.®

It was also during this decade that the City of Palm Springs was incorporated in 1938.
Palm Springs was on its way from its beginnings as a small village to a burgeoning
community. Also by 1938, the Racquet Club had become nationally known.”

1940°s

By the 1940’s, Palm Springs was becoming a popular resort destination. The Racquet
Club continued to grow, but the membership base was evolving. It expanded from being
an exclusive club for movie stars to including top business, political and society leaders.’®

The war came and both Charlie Farrell and Frank Bogert went into the service, leaving
Virginia to run the club alone. When Charlie returned, he found that Palm Springs real
estate was greatly appreciating and business was profitable.!! Frank did not return to his
position as manager, but went on to develop the Thunderbird Country Club."

It was during this profitable time that the Racquet Club greatly expanded. There were
bungalows built towards the back of the property that were designed by local architect,
Albert Fr::y.13 Numerous other additions were made during this decade, including a
kitchen expansion and an addition to the Farrell House.

Also during this decade, Charlie Farrell got more involved in politics, running for City
Council in 1946 and elected Mayor in 1948. He was re-elected in 1953.1*

1950°s

The expansion, begun after the war, continued in the early 1950’s. Additional bungalows
continued to be constructed in 1950 and 1951, once again by Frey’s firm, Clark and Frey.
The dining room was extended and an office added in 1950.

The era of the 1950’s would see continued growth in Palm Springs, with the construction
of many new golf courses and country clubs. Big tennis tournaments became
commonplace. Tournaments such as the Racquet Club Invitational, Racquet Club
Veterans Tennis Tournament, The Charles Farrell Racquet Club Senior Invitational and
the Blue Ribbon nvitational were held at the Racquet Club.”® In describing the Blue
Ribbon Invitational Tournament, Club and Sports Magazine stated “It is considered the
most glamorous tournament in the world, as it attracts Hollywood’s most exciting movie
queens, the towns handsomest leading men, business men, television celebrities,

Im Sprin, Club Historic Report ct
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millionaire playboys, sportsmen and newspaper correspondents. These colorful
personalities are drawn together each year at Charlie’s club for tennis, fun and frolic.”'
The Racquet Club continued to gain popularity because of the enormous exposure it
received. Gossip columnists and reporters continued to report to the public about events
at the club. Photographers such as famed Hollywood photographer Bruno Bernard, Bill
Anderson who was one of the originators of Palim Springs Life Magazine, Paul Popseil
and former Palm Springs mayor Frank Bogert added to the glamour and reputation by
publishing photographs taken at the club.

Charlie Farrell stumbled upon newfound exposure when he was offered the part of a
playboy, tennis champion father in the show *“My Little Margie” in 1952. The show
became popular and he became a famous actor once again to a new generation. It also
led to having his own show, “The Charlie Farrell Show™ in 1956. It was filmed on site
and he played himself as the owner of the Racquet Club.

One significant event in the latter part of the 1950°s was Charlie and Virginia Farrell’s
decision to sell the club. The club was sold for about one million dollars and $100,000 a
year for the Charles Farrell name rights to be used with the club. Robert Morton, a
Pasadena businessman, headed the investment group. Another one of the partners was
Clint Murchinson, Jr. owner of the Dallas Oowboys.l-’r

The new ownership group immediately expanded the club, starting from the late 1950°s
into the early 1960’s. They increased the number of guest units from 58 to 120, the
tennis courts from 4 to 6, and the swimming pools from 1 to 2.'® Other improvements
included remodeling the kitchen, adding a maintenance building and powder rooms.

1960°s

The Racquet Club expansion spanned from the late 1950°s through the early 1960’s. It
was during 1960 that the Racquet Club Cottages, designed by William F. Cody, A.LA.
were added to the back part of the property. These were leased on an annual basis and
the occupants had full privileges for the club facilities and services. In fact, the club
offered to rent out the units for them during the times they were not being used.”” (These
units were later subdivided and sold as the Garden Villas. They are not part of the
current subject property).

The Farrell House was beginning to be transformed after the Farrells purchased a new
home and moved out. It was opened for guest use in approximately 1963, “to be used for
a game room, private dinner parties, luncheons, cocktail parties and executive
conferences”” An addition to the house was made in the late 1960’s, adding a locker
room wing.

In 1965, majoﬁty ownership was sold to George Alexander, Bob Alexander and Sam
Firks through a stock transfer. The Alexanders were contractors and developed
thousands of homes in the local area. Charlie Farrell was retained as managing director.”!

1 ings R. b Historic ctober 8, 2004
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The new owners immediately made improvements prior to their opening party. These

included a new entrance canopy, tennis court, lighting and landscaping. George

Alexander remodeled one of the bungalows for personal use, adding a pool and enclosed
. 22

patio.

They were so excited after the opening party that they scheduled a meeting with the
minority owners, Robert Morton and the Murchinson brothers, to purchase their stock to
fully control the club. Tragedy struck when the father-and-son Alexander team and their
wives were killed on Sunday, November 14, 1965 in a plane crash en route to the
meeting.” Afterwards, a group of Racquet Club members purchased the club from the
sole heir, Bob Alexander’'s daughter. This group, led by Charles Wohlstetter and Donald
Stralem, kept Farrell and the same management team.”

At the close of this decade (1968 and 1969), numerous other alterations were made to the
club. The dining room was again remodeled, the kitchen was again expanded, locker
rooms were added o the Farrell House and the two contemporary, two-story guest
buildings at the rear were constructed.

1970°s

Construction continued through the beginning of the 1970°s. New construction included
alterations to the front lobby and office building, an addition to the pro shop and to the
office.

The 70°s would see a continued diminishment of the attendance of movie stars at the
club. Prominent eastern socialites were replacing the entertainment figures on the guest
list. The club became less of an informal retreat, and more of a formal, service hotel ** It
was at this period, in 1977, that the Hotel del Coronado Corporation would purchase the
Racquet Club. At the time of the purchase, “the purchase comgrised 22 acres, 120 rooms

and suites, 12 tennis courts, 4 pools and other club facilities”.

1980°s to present

Under ownership of the Hotel del Coronado Corporation, additional residential units were
added. The construction of The Colony, fully furnished condominiums, was completed
in 1983.77 (These condominiums would also be subdivided and are not part of the subject

property).

The Racquet Club was purchased by Jack DiMaggio in 1997. Bernard Rosenson then
purchased the Racquet Club in 1999. Afier failing to make it profitable, Rosenson closed
The Racquet Club in 2002 and it is not currently operational.

PERIOD OF SIGNIFICANCE

The period of significance is the length of time when a building or property was
associated with significant events, activities, and persons, or attained characteristics that

et Club Historic R Octo 20
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qualify it as a historic resource. Some periods are brief while others may span several
years. The period of significance should be at least 50 years ago unless there is an
exception to make it significant.

The Racquet Club is significant in its association with a locally significant person,
Charles Farrell, a significant architect, Albert Frey and its architectural significance.
Charles Farrell and the Racquet Club were integral in contributing to growth of Palm
Springs, especially drawing many movie stars to the area. Farrell was also one of the
early mayors of Palm Springs during his management of the Racquet Club. Albert Frey’s
involvement began in the mid- 1940’s with the design of the bungalows, continued
through the 1950’s with the design of additional bungalows and significant additions and
through 1960 when he designed the Schiff House addition. The Racquet Club’s
architectural significance is as an example of early to mid-century Ranch Style resort
architecture.

Because the Racquet Club continued to evolve through time, the period of significance
spans a number of years, from its opening in 1934 to 1960. Although the late 1950’s and
1960 is more recent than 50 years, it is during that period that Frey made significant
contributions to the site, including the dining room alterations and the Schiff House
addition. Consequently, the period of significance is 1934 to 1960.

3.2 PRINCIPAL FIGURE HISTORY

ALBERT FREY, FAIA (ARCHITECT)

The architect for the original buildings in the 1930’s at the Racquet Club is unknown.
However, there are some examples of work produced by local modern architect, Albert
Frey. The extent of Frey’s designs completed on the site is not clear, but it is known that
he worked on several additions and alterations at the Club over a period of approximately
fifteen years.

Mentioned works compiled on a building list attributed to Frey in Albert Rosa’s study of
his works, include:

“1945 Racquet Club Bungalows, 2743 North Indian Avenue, Palm Springs, California
1946 Racquet Club Addition, 2743 North Indian Avenue, Palm Springs, California
(Frey additions and alterations 1947, 1948, 1950, 1957 and 1961)

1960 Schiff House Addition, Racquet Club, 2743 North Indian Avenue, Palm Springs,

California”. 28

Frey was a pioneer of modem architecture in the United States, practicing primarily in
Palm Springs. He is credited for being integral in establishing the Desert Modernism
Style and was also the first of LeCorbusier’s disciples to build a project in the United
States.

Frey was bom in Switzerland in 1903 and educated at the Institute of Technology in
Winterthur, Switzerland. He earned his architectural degree there in 1924, Frey came to

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October 8, 2004
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the realization that he wanted to work in the modemn style. He pursued a position
working with LeCorbusier, being familiar with his work and his book, Towards a New
Architecture™ At LeCorbusier’s atelier, he worked for only a short, but busy period
during the years of 1928 and 1929. During this time, he was involved in several projects,
preparing construction documents and working out new details, most notably for the
Villa Savoye.™®

His ultimate desire was to work in the United States because he viewed the country as
being on the forefront of progress and technology. When his visa application was
accepted, he moved to New York on September 6, 1930, partnering with A. Lawrence
Kocher. Together, they produced the Aluminaire House, a house designed to be low cost
utilizing modern technology, constructed of ali aluminum and light steel.’' It was also
with Kocher that he worked on his first project in Palm Springs, the Kocher-Sampson
Building. It was an office and apartment building for Kocher’s brother, Dr. I.J. Kocher.*

Frey went to Palm Springs to supervise construction of the project in 1934 and ultimately
moved to Palm Springs in 1939. He worked for many years in partnership with John
Porter Clark. They dissolved their partnership in 1966. Frey’s most notable works in
Palm Springs include Palm Springs City Hall, the North Shore Yacht Club, the Raymond
Loewy House and his own homes, Frey Houses I and 11.

His design involvement with the Racquet Club includes the existing guest bungalows.
Building department permit records show that Albert Frey-designed bungalows were
built in 1945, 1947, 1949 and 1951. Although it was Frey’s partner, John Porter Clark,
who usually worked on the more traditional style commissions such as the ranch style
bungalows, Frey’s name specifically appears on the early permits. In addition, Joseph
Rosa’s building list specifically excludes projects that Albert Frey did not take the lead in

designing.

Although the ranch style design seems to contradict Frey’s roots in modernism, he
embraced vernacular design. “While other modemists, like Richard J. Neutra (in his

1927 Wie Baut Amerika?), paid a symbolic homage to vernacular and traditional forms of
California and of the Southwest, Frey in contrast looked upon them as legitimate sources
for contemporary architecture...With this attitude as a background, and with the
predilections of many of his conventional middle-class clients in mind, it should notbe a
surprise to find that much of his work falls loosely within the pre- and post-World War I
California ranch house mode. Frey’s single-floor, rambling ranch houses, like those of
his contemporary CIiff May, illustrate how modern and specific to a time revived historic
forms can be.”?

This ability to create contemporary design utilizing traditional forms and matetials is
evident in the bungalows. He uses functional, modular volumes that shift to create
porches and protrusions to provide more interaction with the surrounding grounds; ail
under a simple roof. An interesting modern detail is the metal corner window that
provides a transparent corner not fypical in vernacular design. From permit records, it

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October &, 2004
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’

appears the bungalows were built over successive years, with the larger bungalows bult
later in 1950.

Frey most likely was involved in the other additions and alterations during the late 1940’s
and mid-1950’s. Although no architect was listed on the permits, several additions were
done at the same time period he worked on the bungalows. These include a kitchen
addition in 1946, an addition to the Charles Farrell residence in 1949, a dining room
extension in 1950 and an addition to the office-shop in 1950. The same contractor (H.H.
Foster and Assoc.) that constructed the bungalows also worked on these additions.
Furthermore, photographs of the dining room were located in the Frey file of Julius
Shulman’s collection. Although he continued to work on the site in 1960, additional
alterations in 1959 (kitchen, maintenance, powder rooms) may have been done by others
since they are more utilitarian and a new contractor was being used to build them.

He was able to retumn to truly modern architecture in 1960 with his Schiff House addition,
introducing many circular shapes and curved edges. It was about this time that he and
Clark dissolved their partnership. Clark wanted to pursue larger commissions, eventually
taking the campus architect position at University of California at Santa Barbara. Frey
wanted to continue working on small residential projects. The Schiff House is an
example of the smaller commissions he started to take.

The Schiff House addition was an expansion and remodeling of one of his original
bungalows. He retained the basic form and roof of the original bungalow and added to
all four sides. The front includes a porch overhang with steps and aluminum handrail.
Although the porch was fairly deep, he designed it with a round skylight. The front
bedroom extension includes a round skylight and the corner walls are rounded.
Additional rooms were added to the south side; again with a round skylight in each room.
The eaves were flat at the bottom and curved up. The signature space is the pool
enclosed in glass with a half-round end, reminiscent of the Loewy House. The roof over
the pool utilizes the same round skylights in a Swiss cheese pattern.

OWNERSHIP HISTORY (From period of Racquet Club to present)

1. 1932 - Charlie Farrell and Ralph Bellamy jointly purchase the property from
Alva Hicks.
December 15, 1934 - Official grand opening of the Racquet Club.

2. Late 1930's - Charlie and Virginia Farrell buy out Ralph Bellamy’s share at
Ralph’s request.

3. Latter part of 1950s - Robert Morton, Clint Murchinson, Jr. and group of
investors purchase the club from Charlie and Virginia Farrell.

4. 19635 — George Alexander, Bob Alexander and Sam Firks purchase controlling
share of stock. Morton and Murchinson still minority stockholders

al i ub Histori October 8, 2
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5. Late 1960’s - Charles Wohlstetter and Donald Stralem purchase Racquet Club
from daughter of Bob Alexander. She was the sole heir after both George and
Bob Alexander and their wives died in Nov. 14, 1965 plane crash.

6. 1977 — Hotel del Coronado Corporation (Larry Lawrence) purchases club.
7. 1997 - Jack DiMaggio Corporation purchases Racquet Club,
*No records were found to show any ownership transition between Hotel del

Coronado Corporation and Jack DiMaggio Corporation.

8. 1999 - Palm Springs Property, LL.C (Bernard Rosenson) purchases club.

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October 8, 2004
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1930°s

1932

1933

1934

12/15/34

1937

Late 1930°s

4.1 CONSTRUCTION HISTORY OVERVIEW

Charles Farrell and Ralph Bellamy purchase land from Alva Hicks, who
also owned the Water Works. The Racquet Club property was
undeveloped at the time it was purchased.

The first construction feature was the original two tennis courts (Courts 1
and 2) by the Davis Company of Los Angeles. It was originaliy intended
to be a single court, but the Davis Company suggested that it would be
cheaper to pour the second court at the same time. The contracior also
suggested installing a fence to catch the balls and a three-sided shelter
located at the side of Court 1 (where the current Clubhouse building is
located) so people could watch. This construction was completed prior to
Dec. 25, 1933, when Farrell and Belamy first opened the courts to their
friends to play for a fee.!

Sometime in 1934, additional tennis courts (Courts 3 and 4) were installed
south of the original courts by the Davis Company. At that time, the main
swimming pool and restrooms were also installed. In addition, the pool
was heated and dressing rooms were added, again at the suggestion of the
Davis Companj,f.2

By December 15, 1934, the grand opening date of the Racquet Club, the
extent of the construction grew and was described as “There were four
tennis courts, sheltered from the strong spring desert winds by eucalyptus
trees planted by the gardener and Farrell, a swimming pool that was just
short of [Olympic] size, a kitchen and dining room with a dance floor and
a Bamboo bar that was designed by film director, Mitch Leisen”.” A
historic aerial photograph taken in the mid 1930’s shows what would
probably be a close approximation to the level of construction at this time.
The four tennis courts were screened by braced wood fences. There
appears to have been additional windscreen walls added on the north
property line and also parallel to the western edge of Courts 1 and 2 and
the swimming pool. It also shows the Clubhouse as the single main
building with some small buildings on the west edge of the swimming
pool, which housed the dressing rooms.

Dining room was enlarged.*
A later historic aerial photograph attributed to the late 1930°s shows that

several additional buildings were quickly added. The “U-shaped Farrell
House with rear yard enclosure was constructed at the south end of the
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1940’s

Early 1940’s

Note:

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

swimming pool, opposite of the Clubhouse. The small dressing room
buildings were removed and replaced with a larger rectangular building
similar in scale and design to the Ranch Style of the Clubhouse with a hip
roof and chimney. This building was later removed. It appears to still
remain in a 1965 photograph (Fig. Hist-13). It likely was removed when
the recessed tennis courts (Center Courts) were installed in 1969 at that
location.

At the time of the aerial photograph, an octagonal dining room, an “L"-
shaped kitchen extension and a glass garden room was also constructed.
Outside of the main complex, the remaining site was still undeveloped
with the exception of cleared area for parking.

Since most of this construction predated Palm Springs’ incorporation in
1938, no permit records were found on file, although Riverside County
records were transferred to the city building department after
incorporation.

From the time of its opening, the Racquet Club was in constant evolution.
Although not all of the changes are evident through building permit and
written document research, it is clear that changes were made at least up
through the time of the publishing of Sally Presley-Rippingale’s book, in
which she notes “Every year for the past fifty years there [have] been
additions, improvements and the maintenance of exacting standards for the
members and their guests™.’

When Charlie Farrell bought out Ralph Bellamy and took over as sole
owner of the Club, Virginia Farrell became more involved in running the
club, decorating the bungalows. Under her direction, the club was re-
landscaped with flowers and creeping-bent grass.®

With Charlie Farrell away serving in the navy during World War II,
Virginia Farrell took over sole operations of the club. Because of the war
and Charlie not being at the club, it appears there was little significant
building or alterations. However, with the conclusion of the war, the local
economy boomed, real estate prices soared and the Racquet Club was
more profitable than ever.” It was at this time that major additions were
undertaken.

In addition to the bungalows listed below, Albert Frey was credited for
designing additions and alterations at the Racquet Club in 1946, 1947 and
1948. No specific reference was found to determine his exact involvement
other than those specifically named below.

October 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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10/9/45 Bungalows by Albert Frey. 6 units. Contractor: C.G. Chamberlin.
(Permit record).

8/37/46 Kitchen. 660 sq. ft. addition, constructed by H.H. Foster. (Permit record).

6/10/47 Bungalow. 3 rental units (frame & stucco, shingle tile roof). Contractor:
H.H. Foster. (Permit record).

1947 Covered Bridge was hand built by Harry Oliver.®

6/28/48 Unknown alteration. (“Alteration per plan™). Contractor: H.H. Foster.

5/10/49 Bungalow. 3 hotel units (frame & stucco, shingle tile roof). Contractor:
H.H. Foster. (Permit record).

6/29/49 Farrell House. Addition to house, constructed by H.H. Foster & Assoc.
(Permit record).

1950°s

Note: In addition to the bungalows listed below, Albert Frey was credited for
designing additions and alterations at the Racquet Club in 1950 and 1957.
No specific reference was found to determine his exact involvement other
than those specifically named below.

5/25/50 Alterations. Add kitchen & bath (frame & stucco, shingle tile roof).

‘ Contractor: H.H. Foster. {Permit record).

8/14/50 Office — Shop addition (600 s.£., frame & stucco, conc. slab, compo. roof),
constructed by H.H. Foster. (Permit record).

8/24/50 Dining room extension {frame & stucco, conc. slab, compo. roof),
constructed by Foster & Assoc. (Permit record).

12/19/50 Alteration of openings to Dining Room addition. Contractor: Foster &
Andrews. (Permit record).

4/17/51 Bungalow by Clark & Frey. 4 room dwelling (frame & stucco, shingle tile
roof). Contractor: Foster & Andrews. (Permit record).

4/20/51 Bungalow by Clark & Frey. 4 room dwelling (frame & stucco, shingle tile
roof). Contractor: H.H. Foster. (Permit record).

9/14/55 Remodel shop. Contractor: H.H. Foster. (Permit record).

7/17/56 3 Bungalows constructed (frame & stucco). (Permit record).

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report Qctober 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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Late 1950’s

7/23/59

7/28/59

1960°s

1960

1961

1963 (estim.)

1564

1/13/65

1965 (estim.)

1965 (estim.)

6/24/68

6/24/68

5/28/69

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA

After they purchase the Racquet Club, Robert Morton and Clint
Murchinson began work to enlarge club, adding 62 new living units, two
new tennis courts and another swimming pool to the 58 units, four tennis
courts and single pool that the Farrells had maintained.”

Addition of women’s powder and men’s toilet room {frame and masonry,
780 sq. ft. added). Contractor: Trousdale Construction Co. (Permit
record).

Add new masonry maintenance building and remodel kitchen (1900 sq. ft.
addition). Contractor: Trousdale Construction Co. (Permit record).

The Racquet Club Cottages, designed by William F. Cody, A.L.A. was
added to the back part of the groperty. (These were subdivided and not
part of the subject property).'

Schiff House addition by Albert Frey."*

Farrell house converted to be used for “a game room, private dinner
parties, luncheons, cocktail parties and executive conferences.'?

Entrance to Farrell House changed. A canopy was installed over entrance
walk w/ sun-deck luncheon area designed by John Morris and Gar Moore.
(No longer remains)."

Fire damage repair at unknown location. (Permit record).

New canopy and brick entrance, new tennis court, landscaping and
lighting added to the driveway.'*

Bungalow converted for personal use of owner George and wife “Jimmie”
Alexander, w/ private swimming pool built in enclosed patio."”

Dining Room remodel, including walls and walks in adjacent areas {no
addition). Contractor: Q.P. Ladd. (Permit record).

Farrell House. Addition of new locker room building (frame and stucco,
wood shake roof, 2,330 sq. ft. addition). Contractor: Q.P. Ladd. (Permit
record).

Contemporary 2 story buildings. 2 new buildings (one 10 unit, one 6 unit)
constructed. (Permit record).
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6/12/69 Center Tennis Courts. Central tennis courts with concrete bleachers
added. Building on tennis court site demolished. Contractor; Q.P. Ladd.
(Permit record).

7/7/69 Kitchen, refrigeration room addition. (180 sq. ft. addition). Contractor:
Joe Leonard. (Permit record).

1970°s

9/10/71 Addition to pro shop building (14x16 ft. addition, frame & masonry
const., shake roof). Contractor: Ladd Development Corp. (Permit record).

7/28/72 Addition to existing office building at front of property (frame and stucco
const., compo. and shake roof). Also replacement of wood front wall with
12°x150” foot long conc. block wall. Contractor: Ladd Development
Corp. (Permit record).

1977 Hotel del Coronado Corporation “purchase comprised 22 acres, 120 rooms
and suites, 12 tennis courts, 4 pools and other club facilities. 16

1980°s

1983 The Colony, a condominium development was constructed, expanding the
total number of residences to 8% condominiums and 45 hotel rooms. The
Racquet Club had grown from the original 2 tennis courts to 12, from 1
pool to 4 pools, 4 twirl spas and 24 private pools. (Much of this was later
subdivided from the subject property)."’

6/1/83 Planning application for new parking kiosk. (Planning record).

4/1/85 Farrell House. Planning application for conference room addition.
(Planning record)

9/5/85 Farrell House. Raise room height in portion of Farrell House, banquet

building. Remove & replace HVAC, new lighting, add attached 8x11
room for chair & table storage. (Permit record).

1990°s-PRESENT

1999 Work under ownership of Bernie Rosenson
All buildings except bungalows — New wood shakes were installed at all
of the common area buildings.
Bungalows- New carpeting, paint, new light fixtures, toilet fixtures and
shutters installed throughout. Tile was repaired.
Farrell House- New pendant light fixtures instalied in meeting rooms.

Im Springs Racquet Club Historic R ctober 8, 20
John Ash Group Architects ' Los Angeles, CA
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Bamboo Bar - remodeled.

Schiff House — New bathroom was added (south bathroom).

Bogart Room — New dance floor was installed.

Kitchen — Large air conditioning unit was place behind kitchen building
(north side).

Tennis Courts — All courts were resurfaced except for 2 northwest courts.

2002 Laundry Room (South end of Housekeeping Building) was rebuilt after it
suffered a fire.
ue istoric R ctober 8,2
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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REFERENCE NOTES

For site plan and floor plans referenced [example: (Plan 11.1-A4)], refer to plans located in
Section 11, Appendix A. Plan sheet pages are numbered in alphabetical order by Section
11.1, foliowed by Building Letter (see example).

For existing conditions photographs referenced [example: (Fig. A.1)], refer to
photographs located in Section 1 1, Appendix B Existing conditions photograph pages
Letter and sub-page number [example: (Page 11.2-A.1)]. Flgure references are listed
under each individual photograph.

For historic photographs referenced [example: (Fig, Hist-1)], refer to photographs
located in Section 11, Appendix C. Historic photograph pages are numbered in

numerical order by Section 11.3, followed by the letter “H” and sub-page number
[example: (Page 11.3-H.1)]. Figure references are correspond with page numbers.

5.1  SITE AND SETTING

SITE DESCRIPTION

The Racquet Club is located northwest of the intersection of North Indian Canyon Drive
(formerly known as Indian Avenue) and Racquet Club Road, in the northwestern portion
of the City of Palm Springs. The strect address is 2743 North Indian Canyon Drive, Palm
Springs, CA 92262.

The site currently occupies approximately 10 acres. When Charlie Farrell and Ralph
Bellamy purchased the land in 1932, it was part of a larger 53-acre site' that was
subsequently subdivided (Other accounts list it as 200 acres).” It was previousty
undeveloped, oovered with sagebrush, cactus and tamarisk trees. The closest bulldmg
was 1.8 miles away.’

The first tennis courts were oriented diagonally from the old Indian Avenue (Fig. Hist-
13). The exact reason the development started with the forty-five degree orientation
towards the road is unknown. Because the original intent was limited to providing a
court to play tennis, it was most likely located for optimal orientation of the sun or the

strong desert winds that were a concern. As the Racquet Club continued to develop,

additional structures radiated from the original origins of the tennis courts and clubhouse
with the same orientation (Fig. Hist-1). As bungalows were added to house the guests,
they were sited to maintain a distance for privacy and to create a retreat atmosphere (Fig.
Hist-13).

A ub Historic ) ctober 8, 200
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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SITE CHARACTER DEFINING FEATURES

Although development has continued over the years around the current site, including
condominium developments immediately adjacent to the property, the setting still retains
most of its original integrity. The main change to the original site is the subdivision of
the original parcel, The remnant subdivision appears fo still include all of the significant
buildings and structures constructed within the period of significance with the exception
of the Whitewater Holding tank. Netcher’s Creek, which wound east-west through the
middle of the current site, no longer exists and has been filled-in.

The character defining features of the site include the original forty-five degree
orientation off of North Indian Canyon Drive of the earliest structures and tennis courts.
Another characteristic is the location of the front entry facing North Indian Canyon
Drive. Although the appearance of the entry has continually changed and has moved
progressively further from the original club house building, the entry has always been
maintained along the same axis which coincides with the longitudinal axis of the original
club house building (Figs. Hist-1,Hist-13).

The other features are a result of its developiment as a private retreat for entertainment
stars. Small cottages are scattered throughout the property. These buildings are mostly
single story, small in scale and maintain a separation from each other to maintain a
reasonable level of privacy. Many of the original cottages followed the winding path of
Netcher’s Creek. The driveway that runs east-west through the middle of the property
from the Farrell House to the rear property line runs parallel and in the approximate
configuration of the original creek route (Fig. Hist-13). Two-story residences were later

introduced at the northwest portion of the property, but still largely maintain the features
of the low, relatively small scale and distance between buildings.

No records were found to determine the progression of the current parking and driveway
configuration although from the very earliest photographs, a parking area was always
maintained at the front of the property and cars drove along the north side of Netcher’s
Creck further into the property, roughly where the current central driveway is located
(Fig. Hist-1).

The character-defining features of the site are scattered placement of the buildings that
maintain separation for semi-privacy; location of the main entry along the original club
house axis; and remnants of the original Netcher's Creek location, indicated by the
placement of several cottages and driveway oriented along its original route. These
characteristics should be preserved.

Palm Springs Racgquet Club Historic Report October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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5.2 DESCRIPTION OF BUILDING FEATURES
BUILDINGS
A Lobby and Office Building

Background and Setting

The Lobby and Office Building is the main point of entry for the Racquet Club. The
main entry and lobby is in direct axis with the Clubhouse (Bamboo Lounge) and Dining
Room (Bogart Room) Buildings. The main entry was originally just an open path created
between the two first pairs of courts (Courts 1,2 and 3,4) (Fig. Hist-13).

An “]”-shaped brick wall was then constructed to enclose the Club (Plan 11.1-A4),
creating the courtyard with courts 3 and 4 on the south side border (Fig, Hist-1). Onthe
north leg of the “L”, a shed building, which served as the office, was built facing the
courtyard and having the brick wall at its rear. A wood screen wall extended to partially
shield the southwest end of Courts 1 and 2 with a planter in front. The main entrance
consisted of a pair of doors set in a recessed alcove of the brick wall (Fig. Hist-7). Upon
entering the double doors, guests would come immediately to a gate waiting to be let in.*

After successive alterations and additions, the original building was replaced with a
deeper one and a retum section of building was added on the main entry wall (Fig. 4.1).
The planter was also removed and a covered walkway was added to lead to the Bamboo
Lounge (Fig. A.2). ln addition, an entrance canopy was added to the front in 1965 (which
was later replaced with the current one) (Fig. 4.3, 4.4) and in 1972, additional offices
(Fig. A.5, Plan 11.1-4) were added north of the original brick wall enclosure along the
edge of tennis courts 1 and 2. It currently houses the entry lobby (Fig. 4.9), the hotel’s
lobby reception area (Fig. 4.7), hotel management offices (Fig. 4.11) and a tennis pro
office (Fig. A.1, right side).

The building is ortented along with most of the original buildings on the forty-five degree
rotation with the main property lines. It is located near the central portion of the property
adjacent to North Indian Canyon Drive (Site Plan 11.1).

Construction Features

The building is one-story, predominantly wood-framed construction on concrete slab.
The building has masonry walls on the rear side with the original masonry wall running
through what are now the hotel lobby reception area and the hotel offices addition. The
style of the building is California Ranch Style with a wood shake, shed roof on the
courtyard side. The offices addition has pitched roofs at the perimeter, screening flat
roofs on the interior to mount air conditioning units. The wood shakes were most
recently replaced in 1999.

Exterior Elevation Features
The front exterior elevation is smooth plaster covered brick. The omamentation above
the entry includes a plaster medallion centered above the double-door and a multi-curved

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report October &, 2004
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surround set in an alcove in the masonry wall (Fig. 4.4). The medallion is not original to
the building, but the door surround is (Fig. Hist-6). A pair of French doors and {anterns
which flank both sides are not original. The original doors were louvered doors. Low
brick planters are matched on both sides of the recessed wall. A metal and fabric canopy
protrudes from the entrance to the front dnveway. The frame has been adomed with
white latticework framing arches on all three sides and a wood cornice, which slopes to
match the canopy fabric at the front. The original entry wall had no entrance canopy
(Fig. 6). A rectangular, metal and striped fabric canopy was infroduced as mentioned in
1965, (Fig. Hist-8) but was later replaced with the current one. (Fig. 4.3)

The rear courtyard elevations are compatible with the original California Ranch Style of
the first structures and are characterized by stucco-covered walls, wood shake-covered
shed roofs, and exposed rafters. The fagade of the original shed building was removed
and the new “L” building protrudes further into the courtyard than the original. There
was a 600 sq. fi. addition constructed in 1950 and another 14°x16’° addition in 1971.

The courtyard walls are transparent, with large, picture windows and French and sliding
doors across the entire elevation (Fig. 4.1, A.8). A covered walkway spans between the
Lobby and Office Building and the Clubhouse (Fig. 4.2). The office additions to the
north, constructed in 1972, are contemporary in style with smooth plaster walls and
aluminum windows. They are stepped in a zigzag configuration (Fig. 4.5). At this
addition, wood shake-covered roofs slope a short distance to a parapet wall which screens
mechanical equipment on a flat, built-up roof. Other than the canopy structure, most of
the front of the building is partially screened by irees and vegetation. The rear elevation
of the office addition is a high masonry wall that extends the length of Courts 1 and 2.
(Fig. A.13)

Interior Features

The interior plan is organized so that the main doors enter into a rectangular entrance
lobby with the main entry on its long side. The Clubhouse is immediately visible beyond
the entry. A separate room is connected on the south side, which is currently used as a
pro shop. To the right (north) of the entry is the hotel lobby reception area (Fig. 4.12)
and a hallway that leads towards the Bamboo Lounge. Behind the reception area in the
office addition is a series of offices, mecting rooms and restrooms on both sides of a
central winding corridor. All of these areas have contemporary finishes and fixtures.
Finishes include wood plank flooring, painted gypsum board, and wood lattice ceiling in
the lobby and reception areas; carpeting, painted gypsum board walls and ceilings with
recessed fluorescent lights in the office areas; flush interior wood doors and French
exterior doors.

The entry lobby and shed roofed areas of the Lobby/ Office Building are significant.
These masonry walls at the edges of these areas were part of the original entrance
constructed and are part of the main elements defining the early development of the
Racquet Club.

Pal ings Racquet Club Historic rt ctober 8, 2
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Significant Character-Defining Features

The major character-defining features include the “L"-shaped masonry wall that defined
the early entrance enclosure (Plan 11.1-A); the decorative plaster medallion and door
surround (Fig. A.4); and the shed roof with wood shakes and exposed rafter framing
(Fig. A.1, AIl). There are no significant character-defining features left in the interiors.
The remaining additions and alterations were constructed within the last fifty years and
beyond the period of significance. The current lattice-covered entrance canopy (Fig.
A.6) was constructed in the recent past and has no significance.

The significant portions of the building that were previously named above should remain
and any proposed alterations or additions conform to the Secretary of Interior’s
Standards. Alteration of the interiors and additions of the building would be allowable
because they have already been significantly altered; the additions are contemporary and
have not acquired their own level of significance. The office addition portion of the
building and the entrance canopy could be removed or altered.

B Clubhouse (Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop)

Background and Setting

The section of building (Plan 11.1-B) that now houses the Bamboo Lounge and Pro Shop
is an evolution of the first building on the site. The site of the Clubhouse, originally had
only a three-sided shelter that was constructed at the suggestion of the original contractor
for people to watch the tennis games.® It quickly evolved into a small rectilinear building
with a wider section further back that was a stretched octagon in layout with bay window
protrusions on both sides (Figs. Hist-1, Hist-4, Hist- 9). This octagonal section was the
original location of the Bamboo Bar.

The rectilinear portion, which housed a gift shop, had group of windows centered on the
original tennis courts. Further back at the end section, the bay windows on both sides
with the almost octagonal roof that was centered on the swimming pool. The more
rectilinear portion closer to the entry had a hip roof with wood shingles and a chimney at
about the mid-point of that section. This building served as the main clubhouse and
housed the Bamboo bar, which was designed by film director, Mitch Leisen.®

A glass-covered, open-framed building (Figs. Hist-2, Hist-5) was added on the end of the
building in the late 1930’s spanning in between the Clubhouse and the Kitchen and
Dining building. The Garden Room, as it was called, may have been the dining room
addition that was built in 1937, as it is the only visible structure built between a 1936 and
1939 photograph. It was originally intended to be used as a sun tanning area with special
glass. It quickly turned into a dining room because there was a lack of space in the main
dining room.” After subsequent alterations and additions, the original building has been
extended towards the front with a semi-octagonal extension and overhang where the
current pro shop exists and widened to increase the size of the bar. The garden room was
covered with board and batten and roof with wood shingles and transformed into an
extension of the Clubhouse, connecting the bar and dining area.

a 1 istoric 004
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The building was also widened, leaving no remnants of the original exterior walls except
interior posts supporting the roof (Fig. 11.1-B). Only the front hip of the original roof
remains. The portion where the chimney was located has been replaced by a short
section of higher roof similar in profile to the garden room roof. The octagonal shaped
section was replaced with a sloped roof to match the hip roof towards the front. Flat
building, porch and walkway overhangs extend over all of the different sides of the
building. It currently houses the Bamboo Lounge, pro shop and dining room.

The building is oriented along with the onginal tennis courts on a forty-five degree
rotation with North Indian Canyon Drive (Site Plan 11.1). It is located between Tennis
Courts | and 2 and the main pool and Tennis Courts 3 and 4 in the northeast quadrant of
the property.

Construction Features

The building is one-story, wood-framed construction on concrete slab, The building has
a combination of plaster and wood siding with numerous glazed openings. The building
was originally constructed in California Ranch Style with stucco walls and a low-sloped
wood shake hip roof. The roof design has retained the same design qualities, but the
stucco was removed and vertical wood tongue and groove siding was added when the
building was enlarged making the style more vernacular. The wood shakes were most
recently replaced in 1999.

Exterior Elevation Features

The front exterior elevation facing the entry is where the current pro shop is located (Fig.
A.2, B.3). It was used as a sundry shop through the Hotel del Coronado era and was the
original gift shop. It is currently a half-octagon with a flat roof overhang of the same
geometry (Fig. B.10). Aluminum windows extend across the entire elevation with an
aluminum entry door at the right, angled wall. The only omamentation is a wainscot
constructed with half-round bamboo.

The north elevation faces Courts 1 and 2 (Fig. B.2). The west side of this elevation
where the pro shop is located has a large picture display window. Where the pro shop
meets the Bamboo Lounge it steps out wide enough for the front entry door (Fig. B.3,
right side). The entry door (non-original) is wood with a glass lit¢ in the shape in a tennis
racquet. A flat, covered walkway spans between the Lobby/ Office Building and the
Bamboo Lounge entry. A row of picture windows with some older casement windows
extend almost floor to ceiling along the entire length of the Lounge Area. Since the
tennis courts abut the building, chain link fence partially covers most of this elevation.

The south elevation faces the main swimming pool (Fig. B.1). From the pool, the many
steps in the roof that show the remaining evidence of the buildings construction history
are visible. Aside from the varying roofline, the elevation is also dominated by a wood
porch extension on wood posts extending almost to the edge of the pool (Fig. B.8).
Picture and steel casement windows run most of the length of this elevation in much the
same fashion as the north with stained wood and glass doors located at both ends of the
bar. The pro shop portion has an aluminum window wrapping from the front side, but is
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mostly covered in vertical wood tongue and groove siding (Fig. B.4). A portion of the
elevation next to that has closets used for storage, electrical and pool equipment.

Interior Features

The interior plan {(Plan {1.1-B) is basically composed of a large rectangular room with
the Pro Shop on the eastern end, the Bamboo Lounge in the middle and a dining room on
the western end. It steps at several points getting wider towards the west end. Thereis a
double row of posts that are the remnants of the locations of the original building walls.
The Bamboo bar is currently centered between these columns. The original Bamboo Bar
was smaller, but the original half-round layout is retained on the west end of the enlarged
bar (Fig. Hist-13). Of significance is that the raised bamboo ceiling at the end of the bar
has been maintained, even though the bamboo itself has been likely replaced. The north
and east perimeter of the Lounge has seating booths. (¥ig. B.5)

A separate room for the pro shop and display area extend from the Bamboo lounge area.
All of these areas have contemporary finishes and fixtures and have been remodeled
numerous times, most recently within the last five years. The style of the Bamboo
Lounge retains the original Polynesian motif. Interjor finishes inciude carpeting, wall
covering, painted gypsum board, textured ceiling covering and bamboo-wrapped
columns, soffits and ceilings. Various soffits and pitched bamboo and fabric-covered
ceilings (Fig. B.7) leave no evidence of the roof changes above the space other than the
original raised ceiling above the bar. Contemporary light fixtures and furnishings also
continue the Polynesian design.

Significant Character-Defining Features
The Clubhouse (Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop) Building is highly significant. The building
was the first of any buildings constructed at the Racquet Club.

The major character-defining features include the linear building massing and fairly low-
sloped wood-shake roof (Fig. B.1,Fig. B.2); the picture and casement window openings
at the north and south end and the half-octagonal configuration of the east-building end.
(Fig. B.10) There are no significant character-defining features left in the interiors with
the exception of the remnanti posts, the west end of the bar (Fig. B.5) (Fig. 13), and the
raised bamboo ceiling immediately adjacent to it. Other interior features have been
altered numerous times and are not significant (Fig. B.9). The retention of the west end
of the bar and the aforementioned bamboo ceiling in the Polynesian style is significant
because of its importance in its history.

Although the original building envelope has been significantly altered, it is not reversible
and the expanded building has taken on a significance of its own. The wood-shake
sloped portions of the roof and the current building envelope should remain. Alterations
may be made according to the Secretary of Interior Standards. More recent alterations
such as the aluminum glass windows, doors and porch extension could be altered.
Alteration of the interiors other than the portions mentioned would be allowable because
they have already been significantly altered. These alterations are contemporary and
beyond the period of significance.

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October &, 2004
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C Kitchen and Dining Building (Kitchen/Bogart Room)

Background and Setting

The Bogart Room (Plan 11.C-1) and kitchen (Plarn 11.C-2) that is currently connected to
the Bamboo Lounge was originally a separate, stand alone building (Fig. 4). It served as
the kitchen and first dining room for the club. As with the other buildings in the original
core of the site, it continually evolved as numerous additions were made.

The original configuration of the building, shown in photographs from the late 1930’s,
show a central rotunda with several appendages (Fig. /). The configuration of the
Kitchen and Dining Building at this point consists of a large, octagonal rotunda with a
multi-faceted wood-shake roof. It is topped with an octagonal cupola with louvered vents
on all sides. (Fig. C.2) The cupola, in turn, has an octagonal wood-shake roof and a
flagpole extending from its pinnacle. The southeast appendage was rectangular with a
hipped roof that intersected, on its long side, with the octagonal section. A chimney was
located on the south end. The other appendage was an “L”-shaped kitchen extension that
connected on that northeast side of the octagon at the bottom corner of the “L”. This
extension has flat roofs and parapet walls.

Since that early photograph was taken, the southeast appendage was removed and the
area between the octagonal section and the original garden room was filled-in with a
connecting cormridor to the Bamboo Lounge, a restroom and some accessory rooms.
Some additions were made to the kitchen area to enlarge it, spreading it in several
directions out from the original kitchen area (Fig. HHist-14). In addition, a stage area was
added to the backside of the rotunda and a dining room addition was constructed on the
remaining exposed wall of the octagonal section, squaring the south side off. Having
been surrounded by later additions, no exterior wall of the original octagon has been left
exposed.

The kitchen additions are covered with flat roofs with parapets at various heights, similar
to the original building. The dining room extension also has a flat, built-up roof that
supports air conditioning units with a wood-shake pitched roof swrrounding all of the
southern edges (Fig. C.3). There is also a wood-framed porch covering extending from
the dining room addition towards the Center Courts. The original octagonal roof and
cupola is still visible beyond this perimeter roof (Fig. C.1).

The building is oriented along with the original (Site Plan 11.1) tennis courts on a forty-
five degree rotation with North Indian Canyon Drive. The rotunda (Bogart Room)
portion of it is located on direct axis with the main entry, the pro shop and Bamboo
Lounge. Itis also directly north of the main swimming pool and south of the Storage
Shed.

Construction Features
The building is one-story, and predominantly masonry wall construction on concrete slab
with some wood-framed portions. The building has a combination of plaster and wood
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siding with numerous glazed openings. The style of the building was originally
constructed in California Ranch Style with stucco walls and a low-sloped wood shake,
roofs. The rear kitchen area was more utilitarian, constructed of brick with flat roofs and
parapets. With the new additions, the original style of the original buiiding is less
evident, having been covered with plain smooth stucco walls and large aluminum sliding
glass doors on the dining room addition and painted, undecorated masonry walls at the
kitchen additions.

Exterior Elevation Features

The rear kitchen areas have no decorative features and are composed of predominantly
solid, flat painted brick with occasional openings of steel and glass casement windows
and flush doors (Fig. C.4). Some of the original windows have been removed and
boarded over. The west kitchen addition is wood-framed with tongue and groove vertical
siding (Fig. C.5). The north end of the building is entirely surrounded with asphalt
service driveways.

As previously mentioned, the south dining room addition is simply designed with flat,
stucco-covered walls and a row of sliding glass doors at the south elevation. (Fig. C.3)
The building corers are decorated with wood latticework. The original Ranch House
Style is still evident in the wide eaves covered with wood-shakes with exposed rafters.

The remaining elevations of the building are covered with the connections to the
Clubhouse Building towards the east and the Storage Extension towards the west.

Interior Features

The most significant part of the interior plan is the Bogart Room (Site Plan 11.1-CI),
which is the area within the octagonal rotunda and served as the original dining room.
Although the exterior walls of the original rotunda have been significantly altered, the
octagon shape is clearly still evident in the roof and the raised ceiling below. Columns
and low walls remain at the line of the original walls where they have been removed.
(Fig. C.7) and a stepped octagonal soffit hovers over a wood dance floor within the
rotunda (Fig. C.10). The soffit steps up and fabric is draped to rise at the center of the
rotunda. A rectangular, bamboo framed opening leads to the connection with the
Bamboo Lounge (Fig. C.9). A small, raised stage is (Fig. C.8) located at the opposite
end with a doorway at the rear, leading to the Storage Extension. The stage is covered
with draping fabric.

The dining room exiension (Site Plan 11.1-CI) has contemporary finishes and is open in
plan (Fig. C.7). Permit records indicate a dining room extension being built in 1950, but
the addition appears in a photograph that is dated 1946. Drapes cover the sliding doors.
The floor is finished with carpet and a suspended ceiling with pressed-metal ceiling
panels hangs above. Exit doors are located at both ends of the room.

The kitchen addition and restrooms (Site Plan 11.1-C2) have all relatively recently
remodeled (Fig. C.6). The kitchen has progressively been enlarged. First constructed in
1934, it was enlarged in 1946, 1959 and 1969. The kitchen houses all functions of a
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commercial kitchen including walk-in refrigerator rooms, storage and pantry rooms,
dishwashing areas, bussing stations, offices, preparation and cooking areas. The finishes
are painted plaster walls, painted plaster ceilings and coated-concrete floor. Exposed
wood columns are visible within the kitchen. The men’s and women’s restrooms that
serve the dining areas and the Bamboo Lounge and are sirategically located in a hall
between them. The restrooms are finished with painted gypsum board walls, ceilings,
vinyl tile (Fig. C.7).

Significant Character-Defining Features

The original octagonal section of the Bogart Room and roof is significant. The building
was one of the first buildings constructed at the Racguet Club and was essential, serving
as the primary dining area.

The major character-defining features include the walls and structure that define the
octagonal plan of the rotunda; the high raised interior space underneath the rotunda;
and the octagonal wood-shake roof and cupola. There are no other significant
character-defining features. The interiors have been altered numerous times and are not
significant and the exterior has been significantly altered many times through several
additions and alterations so that other than at the roof level, no significant character-
defining features are left.

The original building envelope has been significantly altered and most of the additions
have not gained their own significance yet. The volume and roof of the dining room
addition has gained its own significance, but the openings and lattice decoration are
more recent and are not significant. The wood-shake octagonal roof and structure
below should remain. Since the kitchen area has been altered numerous times and has
lost much of its integrity, subsequent alterations should be permissible. In addition,
alterations to the interiors of the Bogart Room and the dining room should be permissible
since no original fabric other than the structure of the octagon remains. Alterations
should be made according to the Secretary of Interior Standards.

D Farrell House

Background and Setting

The Farrell House is located on the central axis of the main swimming pool on its south
side (Site Plan 11.1-C2). The house was sited along with the Dressing Room building
subsequent to the construction of the main pool to formally address the south and west
sides of the pool. The original clubhouse addressed the pool on the north side and tennis
courts 3 and 4, its east side. The house originalty functioned as the residence for Charlie
and Virginia Farrell.

One of its earliest forms was a “U”-shaped building with a long central portion and two
short returns that turned away from the pool on either side (Figs. Hist-1, Hist-3). It was
originally a simpler shaped building with the western wing, which housed a spa, being
added later.® There have been several other alterations and additions since it was
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originally constructed which has altered it significantly. In fact, its use is no longer as a
residence, but as a meeting hall with large restroom and spa facilities.

The Farrell house is oriented along the same forty-five degree orientation from the former
Indian Avenue. Netcher’s Creek used to run along the rear of the house, but now has
been replaced by the central driveway that provides access to the rear portion of the site.
Additiona! tennis courts were added at some point on both the east and west sides of the
house.

Construction Features

The building is one-story, wood-framed construction on concrete slab. The style of the
building is California Ranch Style with a wood shake, hip roof. The wood shakes were
most recently replaced in 1999. As a result of subsequent alierations and additions, the
building configuration is no longer “U”-shaped. Successive rear additions first doubled
and then almost quadrupled the depth of the original central portion of the house to form
a large, rectangular meeting hall. The first expansion to double the depth of the house
appears in a photograph dated 1946. The Farrell House was enlarged again in 1985 after
it had already been converted to a meeting hall.

The southeastern retumn of the house, where Frank Bogert lived when he was the club
manager, was demolished. Its location was where the easterly sidewalk is now located
(Fig. D.4). The northwestern return of the house was either demolished or significantly
altered to the point that it is not identifiable. There is currently a long rectilinear
connected building that abuts the meeting hall (Fig. D.4). It is aligned with it in the rear,
but protrudes past the front of the original house section (Fig. D.). This portion was
constructed in 1968. There was a masonry chimney on the east side of the house that was
demolished at some unknown date, but that still existed during a circa 1980’s aerial
photograph and a 1982 construction drawing.

Exterior Elevation Features

The front exterior elevation is the only portion remaining from the original house (Fig.
D.1). Thereis a long section of the front elevation where the entry door is located that
was part of the original house with the front portion of the bathroom and spa addition
protruding about 18 feet in front of it. The front is clad with board and batten siding and
has a brick wainscot, which was copied at the adjacent protrusion. Brick planters on both
sides of the entry door that existed as late as 1984 * have been removed and lost. The
entire roof was either reconstructed or raised at some point, presumably during the first
meeting hall addition to provide more ceiling clearance. Consequently, historic and
contemporary photographs show that the front fagade has a taller appearance than the
original low, ranch style house. The integrity of the board and batten siding is suspect
because it is seamless at the height extension and was most likely replaced when the roof
was raised.

There is a central paneled entry door with Corinthian doorframe (Fig. D.5,D.9). Since
the Farrell House was known as “the house with the red door”, °® its current red color has
some significance, although the doorframe was not originally red as it currently is. The
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entry door itself was replaced with a new door with panic hardware and applied detailing
to mimic the original panel pattern. There are two lantemn light fixtures on both sides of
the door, but they are contemporary and have been placed lower and wider than the
original locations. A divided lite bay window is located to the right of the entry door
(Fig. D.6). There is also a divided lite corner window on the opposite side. This comer
window was altered when the eastern building wing adjacent to it was cut off. The
adjacent protrusion of the spa and restroom building is similarly was clad with board and
batten and has a single bay window centered on the front similar io the original house
(Fig. D.1, Right Side).

All the side and rear facades are all additions or alterations to the original building. The
east fagade is delineated by the return portion of the corner window towards the front, a
plaster-covered bump out that incorporates the remnant of the original fireplace and flush
contemporary exit doors and stucco that cover the rear additions (Fig. D.4). The west
facade contains offices, large restrooms and spa facilities that run the entire length (Fig.
D.3). The walls are sided with board and batten and continue the brick wainscot design.
There is a central door with two divided lite windows on both sides. Further out, the
building sieps back slightly with a recessed door that is mirrored on both sides. A gable
porch overhang with decorative knee-brace brackets cover the two recessed doors (Fig.
D.4). There is a retaining wall at the south (rear) side as the grade slopes up.

The rear elevation steps at the roof level where the restroom and spa section meets the
higher meeting room section (Fig. D.2). The board and batten siding is continued and
two large divided lite windows are evenly spaced in the meeting room addition. A low
plaster wall mimics the brick wainscot design elsewhere. The lower restroom and spa
roof has a dormer vent.

The gable roofs of the meeting room addition encircle a flat roof that contains air
conditioning units. These are relatively well-screened from view. Another feature to
note is that the additions come close to, but manage to avoid the removal of two tall trees
at the rear of the house (Fig. D.2).

Interior Features

The interior plan (Pian 11.2-b) is organized as a large rectangular meeting room that
adjoins a longer, but more parrow rectangular section on its long side (Fig. D.7). The
longer section houses men’s and women’s locker rooms, restrooms, saunas, massage
rooms and offices. All of these areas have contemporary finishes and fixtures (Fig. D.8).
Finishes include carpeting, ceramic tile, and painted gypsum board. The meeting room
has been completely remodeled and any original interior partitions were removed. It is a
large, open room with carpeting, painted gypsum board walls and ceiling with

contemporary pendant lights.
Significant Chargcter-Defining Features

The Farrell House is significant because it is one of the first structures constructed and
part of the main organizational core. [t also was the primary residence for the Racquet
Club's owners, Charles and Virginia Farrell, for many years during its period of
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significance. Unfortunately, however, the building has lost much of its original integrity
due to the many alterations.

The major character-defining features include the small scale massing with wood shake-
covered gable roof (Fig. D.1); the front facade design features with board and batten
siding and brick wainscot, the original divided-lite bay window adjacent to the entry
door (Fig. D.6); the Corinthian doorframe and red, paneled door entry (Fig. D.5, D.9).
There are no significant character-defining features left in the interiors. The remaining
additions and alterations were constructed within the last fifty years and beyond the
period of significance. In fact, the additions did not follow the Secretary of Interior’s
Standards and in some instances create a false sense of history.

Since the impact of the additions and alterations are not reversible and there is no
adequate documentation of the original house, there is no clearly definable scheme to
restore the original features. The original main entry fagade, doors, bay window and
roof should remain and any proposed alterations conform to the Secretary of Interior's
Standards. Alteration of interior finishes and previously altered and added portions of
the building would be allowable because they have not yet acquired their own level of

significance.
E Cottage Building (Maintenance Office/Early Cottages)

Background and Setting

The residential units at the Cottage Building are the oldest guest quarters that were built
on the property. Ag described in the Site History, these units were constructed in arder to
secure a construction loan to build additional tennis courts. At one point, the largest unit
where the maintenance office is located now was purchased by Spencer Tracy and
remodeled as a more private retreat where he ofien stayed with Katherine Hepburn. '’

The building is oriented parallel to the north property line and abuts it almost at the
halfway point of the property depth (Site Plan 11.1). The property line bound it on the
north, the Housekeeping Building on the west, the Shed Building on the east and an
asphalt service driveway on the south. A concrete block retaining wall borders the
service driveway as it slopes down towards the east. The building is currently exposed
with sparse landscaping in front that includes grass, some bushes and a palm tree (Fig.
E.6). However, many of the original Eucalyptus trees that were planted at the property
line are located in the back and have now grown to a tall, mature height.

Construction Features

The Cottage Building is a one-story, wood-framed structure on concrete siab. The
building is vernacular in style with gabled roof, horizontal wood siding, and sash
windows. The building is composed of a long rectilinear building adjoined with a taller,
squarer building in an “L” configuration. The eaves extend further for shelter at the entry
doors, breaking the otherwise straight, horizontal plane of the roof eave. The roof is
currently covered with asphalt composition roofing sheets covering previously installed
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asphalt composition shingles. Some supplemental air conditioning units were added on
the roof as well as side-mounted on the wall.

Exterior Elevation Features

The exterior elevations are of simple design, characterized by the horizontal wood siding
and flat 1x trim at the building corners and surrounding the doors and windows. The wall
planes are relatively flat, making the porch extensions a prominent character-defining
design feature (Fig. E.3). Doors and windows are paired rhythmically along the length of
the south facade in an alternating mirrored pattern, reflecting the interior plan of paired
units (Fig. £.3, Plan 11.1-E). The inside corner of the “L” configuration contains a
recess for two doors and windows at that location (Fig. E.4). Several of the doors are
original panel doors, while many of them have been replaced with contemporary flush
doors. A few window openings on the southwest portion of the building have been filled-
in with solid walls or air conditioners and a few replaced with aluminum sliding windows
(Fig. E.5). The remaining elevations are similar, but have only windows and no doors.

The south side elevation was significantly altered when an infill connection was
constructed to connect the Housekeeping Building and the Cottage Building (Fig. E.7,
F.2). Although some of the siding still remains on that side, much of it has been removed
or damaged. The lower portion of the south roof was framed over by the connecting roof
and most of the eave rafters and roof overhang was cut off.

Interior Features

The interior plan in the linear portion is composed of what were six studio units with a
common bathroom between each pair of units (Plan 11 1-F), Two of the units on the
south side were demolished and combined to form a large room with kitchenette (Fig.
E.5). The retum portion contains an additional studio unit (Fig. E£.2) and bathroom. This
unit was subsequently combined with the large room with kitchenette by means of an
opening between the two. At the end of the return is a larger unit that has subsequently
been turned into the maintenance office. When it was no longer used as a residence, the
maintenance office was altered to accommodate office and storage space and all of the

original interior features have been lost (Fig. E.8).

The remaining interior finishes have all been replaced at some point. Gypsum board with
wall covering or paint replaced much of the original wall and ceiling finish. New base
and crown molding was installed; door and window trim replaced the original and most
of the original plumbing fixtures were replaced. The four northern units, however, retain
much of its original wall configuration although the finishes have been replaced.

Significant Charqcter-Defining Features

The Cottage Building is significant because it is the only remnant of the earliest of the
Racquet Club's guest quarters. These cottage units are an integral part of the Racquet
Club’s use during its period of significance, housing many movie stars of the period,
including, Spencer Tracy. The major character-defining features include the small scale
“L"-shaped massing; vernacular design with horizontal wood siding, double-hung
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windows and gable roof; the entry porch overhang (Fig. E.6). An example of the
remaining unit plans with the paired studios and common bathroom should be preserved.

The interior finishes have been significantly altered and lost their integrity and the south
units have been significantly altered. This building should be preserved if possible.
However, it is noted at this time, much of the building is deteriorating and further
investigation of the structural integrity and integrity of the wood is recommended. It is
recommended that it be rehabilitated and any proposed alterations conform to the
Secretary of Interior s Standards for Rehabilitation. A possible use may be to demolish
some of the surrounding storage and maintenance buildings and consolidate the uses
within this building. The infill connection with the Housekeeping Building is an intrusion
and should be removed. Alteration of interior finishes and previously altered portions of
the building would be allowable because they are not significant.

F Housckeeping Building

Background and Setting

The Housekeeping Building houses laundry and housekeeping facilities, restrooms and
assorted storage areas and is connected to the Cottage Building by means of a roofed
infill connecting the buildings (Fig. F.2, F. 5, F.6). The building and infill connection
was constructed most likely in 1959 when permit records indicate a masonry maintenance
building was constructed. It was not present in a 1948 photograph (Fig. Hist-13), but was
present in a 1967 photograph (Fig. Hist-11).

The building is located at the north central portion of the property and is aligned
perpendicular to the north property line, abutting it on the north side of the building {Site
Plan 11.1). The back (west side) of the building adjoins the northwest tennis courts
along its entire short (end) side and is sited in close proximity, west of the Cottage
Building. The building is fronted on the south and southeast sides with an asphalt service
drive (Fig. F.2). The massing is long and rectangular and is wider at the laundry room
(Fig. F.2). With its connection to the Cottage Building, it forms an “L” shaped grouping
of buildings (Plan 11.1-F). A lean-to storage shed was added onto the south side (Fig.

F.7).

Construction Features

The building is one-story, mostly wood-framed construction with a concrete block rear
wall and partial north and south walls. The building is constructed over a concrete slab on
grade. The style of the building is utilitarian with flat built-up roofs ending with vertical
fascias. There are air conditioning units located on the roof and exhaust ducts penetrating
the top and side.

Exterior Elevation Features

Other than concrete block, the majority of the remaining building is faced with painted T-
111 plywood (Fig. F.I). This was used when a portion of the building was constructed
due to a 2002 fire. All of the windows are located on the east elevation. One of the
window openings is a wood picture window with applied muntins overlaid while another

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report Qctober 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA



5.0 Architectural Descniption Page 5-16

has been boarded up. Other minor characteristics on the fagade include a smalt wall-
mounted air conditioning unit and security lighting on the roof.

Interior Features

The housekeeping building is laid out in a series of storage rooms, restrooms and ending
with a wider laundry and housekeeping room (Plan 11.1-F). The interiors are
undecorated with painted gypsum board walls and ceilings and bare concrete in the
laundry and housekeeping areas (Fig. F.3). The storage rooms are completely unfinished
with concrete floors and exposed wood framing and concrete block (Fig. F.4).

Significant Character-Defining Features

This building is contemporary and much of it was recently rebuilt. There are no
significant character-defining features that would require preservation of the buildings
or prohibit alterations to them. In fact, the infill connection to the Cottage Building was
a poorly planned addition that destroyed some historic fabric when it altered and
covered the west side of that building (Fig. F.2). It also obstructs the view of the wes!t
elevation and does not leave the extent of original building clearly defined. Removal of
the housekeeping building is preferred, although optional, but the infill connection
should be removed because it is an intrusion that negatively affects character-defining
Seatures of the Cottage Building.

G Shed Building (Storage Building)

Background and Setting

The Shed Building is a shed building with a porch at the rear (north) side of the building
(Plan 11.1-G). There was no record found of its exact construction date, but was
constructed at an early date. It was originally used as supplemental housing for some of
the employees because it was hard to get employees without finding them place to live.!'
it is very small in size and there is no interior plumbing.

It is located at the north property line, north of the kitchen and Bogart Room building
(Site Plan 11.1). The setting is secluded and numerous trees hide most of the building.
The building mass is small in scale. The high point of the shed roof is on the north side
and it slopes down towards south side. It is rectilinear with the porch running the entire
length of the north side and aligned with the north property line.

Construction and Exterior Elevation Features

The building is one-story, wood-framed construction on concrete slab. The building is
vernacular in design and is clad with wood board and batten siding punctuated
periodically with wood casement windows and wood panel doors. The porch was
replaced at some point with metal panels (Fig. G.3). The roof was also replaced with an
asphalt composition roof over a new plywood diaphragm. Many original doors still
remain, although some door openings have been framed in and most of the screen doors
have been removed (Fig. G.4).
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Interior Features

The interior layout is a series of connected in a single row. The rooms are currently used
for storage and have shelving and closets constructed in them (Fig. G.5). Electrical was
instalied using exposed conduit.

The condition of the building is very poor. It is visibly leaning and many of the exterior

siding boards and batten are missing or broken. The porch has deteriorated significantly.
Much of the deck is missing and the remaining is damaged and sagging. The porch posts
are also leaning. ‘

Significant Character-Defining Features

This building is an example of a vernacular building on the site and was constructed

during the period of significance. However, the building has lost much of its integrity

and is in extremely poor condition. Also, it was not an important and significantly used

building at the club and was deliberately not meant to be seen by the guests. It could not i
be rehabilitated without a significant loss of original material. There are also no

significant character-defining features that would justify requiring the building to be

rehabilitated. Therefore, if the building is not repaired and rehabilitated, there is no

significant reason that it could not be removed,

H Maintenance Buildings/Storage Extension

Background and Setting

This building is actually a grouping of three abutting, but scparately constructed one-
story buildings that serve as office space and storage area for the maintenance of the
Racquet Club and additional storage to serve the dining areas. (Plan 11.1-H) The
buildings were constructed at separate times. A circa 1980°s photograph shows only the
two maintenance buildings separate from the building housing the kitchen and Bogart
Room (Fig. Hist-14) The storage extension, connecting those buildings was added at
some point after the photograph, connecting diagonally from the back of the Bogart room

'stage and kitchen to the rear of the two maintenance buildings.

They are located at the north central portion of the property. The maintenance buildings
(Fig. H.Iand the storage extension are not aligned to any previous building orientation
or property line. They are also not in alignment with each other. It appears that the
maintenance buildings were sited first to fit within the available area and ihe storage
extension was oriented only because it was an infill connection between buildings. The
massing is two offset rectangular buildings (the maintenance buildings) with a linear
rectangular building (storage extension) connecting it to the kitchen and Bogart Room.

Construction and Exterior Elevation Features

The buildings are one-story, wood-framed construction. The main maintenance building
is raised on concrete biocks while the remaining buildings are constructed on concrete
slab. The style of the buildings is a purely utilitarian. They have flat built-up roofs with
vertical fascias. (Fig. H.3) The two maintenance buildings are faced with wood board and
batten while the storage extension is faced with painted T-111 plywood. (Fig. H.2) The
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few window openings are aluminum sliders and doors are flush wood doors. Other minor
characteristics on the fagade include some exposed conduit and small wall-mounted air
conditioning units,

Interior Features

The interior plans of the two maintenance buildings consist of two rooms each in a
shotgun layout. (Plan 11.1-H) The south one was used as an office, while the north one
primarily as storage. The interiors are simple with painted gypsum board and carpet.
(Fig. H.6) The storage extension {Fig. H.5) is post and beam construction and is
primarily a large open spacc with an auxiliary storage room on the north end and a
separated storage room on the west end. The open space is encroached by posts as
required. It is unfinished with exposed wood wall and roof framing and bare concrete
floor. It is lighted with suspended fluorescent fixtures.

Significant Character-Defining Features

This grouping of buildings is contemporary and did not exist during the period of
significance. They are not visible during a 1967 photograph (Fig. Hist-11 ) As
mentioned, the storage extension did not exist during a circa 1980 s photograph (Fig.
Hist-14). There are no significant character-defining features that would require
preservation of the buildings or prohibit alterations to them. In fact, the storage
extension was a poorly planned intrusion that destroyed some historic fabric when it
connected to the Bogart Room and kitchen. It also obstructs the view of a portion of the
wes! elevation and does not leave the original building clearly defined and separate.
Removal of these buildings is recommended.

I Contemporary 2 Story Buildings, (I.1) — Units 73-81, (1.2) — Units 68-72

Background and Setiing

There are two contemporary 2-story buildings that were added to the Racquet Club in
1969. They'are located at the rear, northwest corner of the property. (Site Plan 11.1)
Although they are larger buildings than the original bungalows, they still retain much of
the setting characteristics of separation between buildings and are semi-sheltered by trees.
Building L1 is larger (Plan 11.{-1.1-1,2}, with five units on the first floor and four
additional units on the second. Building L2 (Plan 11.1-12-1,2) is smaller, with five units
on the first floor with only a loft that is connected to one of the first floor units on the
second story. The two buildings are variations of the same basic plan. The massing is
modular with varying setbacks similar to the original bungalows. They are aligned with
the north property line.

Construction Features

The buildings are two-story, wood-framed construction on concrete slab. The style of the
buildings is modern with some Prairie Style design characteristics, They have wide, flat
eave overhangs, low-sloped hip roofs, simple ornamentation, smooth stucco finish and
high vertical window openings (Fig. 1.1-1).
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Exterior Elevation Features

The exterior elevations are a series of offset planes. They are simple, flat stucco walls
with floor to ceiling glass windows and sliding doors (Fig. I.1-3). These give the glass a
tall, vertical orientation only broken by the floor plane and exterior balconies (Fig. 1.2-2).
As previously mentioned, the roof is characterized by a low-slope hip roof over the
second floor levels and a straight parapet and flat roof where it is only one-story (Fig. J.2-
I). The only ornamentation is provided on the decorative posts of the metal picket
balcony railing (Fig. I.1-3) and the patterned perforated concrete block patio enclosure
walls at the first floor (Fig. I./-4). Additional solid vertical planes are introduced at the
solid, stucco-covered sides of one end of each balcony.

Interior Features

The interior plan consists of four studio units flanking a larger two-story unit (Plans 11.1-
L1-1,2; 111-12-1, 2). The larger unit has a large, open room, kitchen and bathroom on
the ground floor and a bedroom and bathroom on the second floor. The studio units have
one open room and a bathroom. Two of the four units also have a protruding dining or
entry room with a kitchenette located in an adjacent closet (Fig. I 7-6). The rooms are
finished with painted gypsum board, carpet and painted gypsum board ceilings and have
been updated since they were constructed (Fig. .2-3). The light fixtures, plumbing
fixtures and bathroom decor are contemporary for the period (Fig. 1.1-7).

Significant Character-Defining Features

These two buildings are contemporary and did not exist during the period of significance.
There are no significant character-defining features that would require preservation of
the buildings or prohibit alterations to them.

J Bungalows (Albert Frey), (J1) — Bungalow Units 54, 55 and 56,
(42) — Bungalow Units 57, 58 and 59, (J3) - Bungalow Units 60, 61 and 62,
(J4) - Bungalow Units 63, 64 and 65, (J5) - Bungalow Unit 66,
(J6) — Bungalow Units 32, 33 and 34, (J7) — Bungalow Units 35, 36 and 37,
(J8) — Bungalow Units 38, 39 and 40, (J9) — Bungalow Uniis 41, 42 and 43

Background and Setting

There are nine bungalow buildings scattered throughout the central and western portion
of the property (Plans 11.I). They were constructed and used as guest cottages. Two of
the original bungalows were converted to meeting rooms and are now classified as the
Boardroom Buildings. One was added onto and is now called the Schiff House. Two of
them were also demolished and replaced with the three end tennis courts at the south end
of the property. By 1948, a photograph (Fig. Hist-13) shows only buildings J6, J7, J8,
L1, L2 and the two bungalows that were later demolished (Fig. Hist-14). The remaining
ones were constructed later.

The bungalows are variations of two types of plan layouts, with a third being an aiteration
of one of them. There is a small, three-unit Jayout as seen in Bungalows 36, J7, J8 and J9
(Plans 11.1-J.6, J.7, J.8, J.9) and a larger, three-unit layout with kitchen, as seen in
Bungalows 11,32, J3 and 14 (Plans 11.1-J.1, J.2, J.3, J4). The third type of layout is
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seen in Bungalow J5. This is a modified version of the small, three-unit layout with some |

additional built area and remodeled bathrooms. It has also been converted to a single
unit.

The bungalows are not aligned, but oriented at various angles (Site Plan 11.1). Five of
the buildings (Bungalows J1, J2, J3, J4 and J5) are sited roughly along the route of the
original Netcher’s Creek. The other four buildings (Bungalows J6, J7, I8 and J9) are
oriented in a rough semi-circle at the south central portion of the site. They are mostly
landscaped all around with trees, grass and some bushes. The bungalows are generally
kept away from each other and from parking and driveways, fulfilling the original intent
of providing private retreats for the guests.

Construction Features

The buildings are one-story, wood-framed construction on concrete slab. The style of the
building is typical California Ranch House Style with a painted stucco exterior and wood
shake, gable roof (Fig. J.11). Most of the wood shakes appear to have been replaced at
some unknown date. There is a masonry chimney that protrudes at the apex of the gable.
The windows are fixed steel picture windows and steel casement windows typical of
post-war buildings during that period.

Exterior Elevation Features

The front exterior elevations (Fig. J.[) consist of a protruding fagade approximate one-
third the length of the building, while the remainder steps back two different degrees of
depth. The recesses form a porch area (Fig. J4). The middle recess is the deepest and
defines the main entry area. The roof is mainly rectangular and is straight across the
front, covering the porch area and is supportied by wood posts where the recesses occur.
The porch slab and walkway to the entry are relatively recent alterations.

In addition, painted concrete masonry walls have been added to enclose a private porch in
the front of the building off the protruding bedroom side (Fig. J.9). Three pairs of French
doors with sidelites have replaced the original two exterior bedroom doors at both ends
and main entry in the middle. There is a single flush door where the exterior storage
room occurs. Most of these storage doors appear to be the original doors. Contemporary
lantern light fixtures have been installed adjacent to many of the doors.

The rear elevation (Fig. J.2) is relatively simple and flat with one step in the building
plane at the corner of the main living area. This also coincides with a single jog in the
otherwise rectangular roof, At this jog in the plan, there is wide window that wraps the
protruding corner of the living room (Fig. J.3). This column free corner window is the
single element of the building, which reveals the modemist style of its architect. The
remaining three windows at the rear are simple metal casement windows that occur
where the bathrooms are located. Flush doors cover some rear and side mechanical and
storage areas.

The side elevations are plain, solid stucco, punctuated with a single steel casement and
picture windows. In some cases, there is a French door with an additional private
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concrete wall-enclosed patio. Exposed conduit has been placed intermittentty around the
exterior and several wall-mounted air conditioning units penetrate some exterior walls.
Other later alterations include the use of lattice screen walls to cover mechanical
equipment in several areas,

Interior Features

The interior plan is roughly composed of three (or four, in the larger units with kitchens)
separate rectangular modules, of varying depths (Plans 11.1-J.1, J.9). The two end
modules are basically bedrooms in front and bathrooms and closets in the rear. The
middle module is a single large room with closets and a fireplace on the side. The larger
unit is similar with the exception of another module in the middle, which has a kitchen in
front, a bathroom and closet in the rear and a hallway in between.

The interior finishes have been significantly altered. New carpet, paint, doors, trim and
molding have replaced the original throughout (Fig. J.6). New fixtures and accessories
have been installed in the bathrooms (Fig. J.5). New tile has been installed in the
bathrooms, although remnants of what appear to be the original tile remain in several of
the shower and bathtub areas. Wood shutters have been added. Kitchen cabinets and
appliances have been replaced (Fig. J.8). The criginal fireplaces still remain, although
new surrounds have replaced the original (Fig. J.9). New outlets, switches and }ight
fixtures have replaced the original. One interesting detail that corresponds with the
corner living room window previously mentioned is a ledge that occurs on the interior,
deepening the sill of the window (Fig. J.6). It still remains on most windows, but has
been removed in some of the units.

Significant Character-Detming Features

The bungalows are significant because they are an integral part of the Racquet Club's
development as a resort during its period of significance. In addition, a noted architect,
Albert Frey, designed them. The major character-defining features include the small
scale massing with wood shake-covered gable roof (Fig. J.1, J.11); the mostly
rectangular configuration with steps in the building plane, (Fig. J.3) the recessed porch
area(Fig. 1.4); the relatively solid wall planes punctuated with steel casement and picture
windows; the semi-private setting maintained by building separation; and the simple,
modular plan which largely remains intact.

The interior finishes have been significantly altered and lost their integrity and the
original doors (both interior and exterior) and front bedroom openings also have been
significantly altered. These buildings should generally remain and any proposed
alterations conform to the Secretary of Interior’s Standards. However, because they
have been significantly altered and their significance is derived more as a collection of
bungalows rather than an individual building, select bungalows may be removed without
adversely impacting the bungalows as a whole. Alteration of interior finishes and
previously altered portions of the building would be allowable because they have not
acquired their own level of significance.
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K Schiff House {Albert Frey Addition)

Background and Setting

The Schiff House is an alteration of an original bungalow building designed by Albert
Frey. This is an addition to what was originally the larger, three-unit layout with kitchen.
The house 1s sited at the southwest end of the semi-circle formed by Bungalows J6, J7, J8
and J9 (Site Plan 11.1}. Tt is bounded by the south property line towards the south and
the original water holding tanks towards the west. Bungalow J9 is situated in close
proximity to the north. The parking area has currently been extended to the edge of the
pool screen wall and house entry on the east with a carport added northeast, adjacent to
the house.

Construction Features

The original building and addition is one-story, wood-framed construction on concrete
slab. The overall massing of the building was severely altered by the house addition.

The front clevation is dominated by the semi-circular pool extension and bedroom
extension on the opposite side of the entry door (Fig. K./, K.2). The sides and rear retain
a rectangular form. The original rear-building jog was eliminated through the addition of
storage rooms in the rear.

The architectural style was transformed from typical California Bungalow style to Frey’s
desert modern style with flat roof overhangs and upturned curves at the eaves (Fig. K.2).
Modern materials were introduced. The pool is surrounded by metal and glass sliding
doors (Fig. K.5). The semi-circular end is in turn echoed by a corrugated metal screen
wall, which harbors a private planter area. Other than the front addition, the rear exterior
materials and roof have remained relatively unchanged. The newer flat roof extends from
the original rectangular gable roof, which still is covered with wood shakes. Mechanical
screens on top of the roof, visible in historic photographs have been previously removed.
The original masonry chimney still protrudes at the apex of the gable. Many of the
original post-war steel windows still remain on the north and west (rear) elevations.

Exterior Elevation Features

The front exterior elevation, as previously mentioned, is defined by a semi-circular,
corrugated metal screen wall on a stepped, concrete retaining wall (Fig. K.7). Behind it,
about one-fourth of the semi-circular steel and glass pool enclosure is visible at its upper
portion. The semi-circle is strongly re-emphasized with the curved eave overhanging
above the enclosure. On the other side, along the front of the building, the curved eave
continues straight across. The bedroom addition at the front juts out with distinctive
rounded wall corners. The main entry is recessed between these two protruding elements
and is lighted by a circular skylight in the roof (Fig. K.3). The entry is composed of a
single door flanked with full-height, glass sidelites.

The rear elevation is relatively simple and unaltered with the exception of the building
being flattened by the infill of the existing building recess with additional storage areas.
The south elevation is new as there was a bedroom and storage room addition on that
side.
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The side elevations reveal the transition of architectural styles, showing the connection
between the gable roof of the original bungalow and the relatively flat roof with curved
overhang of the modern addition. A smooth stucco finish has been maintained
throughout. Exposed conduit has been placed intermittently around the exterior and
exposed air conditioning units and ducts are visible on the rear elevation and pool
enclosure roof.

Interior Features

The interior layout still maintains roughly the same division of major spaces as the
original plan. However, the building was added to in the front, creating an entry foyer in
front of the original living room and adding a dining room in front of the kitchen. An
additional bedroom was added in front of the north wing, while the bedroom and
bathroom configuration in the original portion has been roughly retained. The kitchen
(Fig. K.7), hall, and bath of the central module have been roughly retained as well with
some alterations.

The southern module was completely altered with the bedroom being moved to the rear,
the bathroom being moved towards the front (Fig. K.9). A pool bar (Fig. K.6, K.8) was
also added in front of the original building wall. In addition, another bedroom and
storage area were built onto the south end of the building. Finally, the pool and pool
enclosure were added to the south, front portion of the house (Fig. K.5). Circular
skylights were installed in the pool roof as well as in the ceiling of both of the added
bedrooms.

The interior finishes have been significantly altered even after the alterations by Frey in
1960. They have been replaced with contemporary finishes. New carpet, paint, doors,
trim and molding have replaced the original throughout. New fixtures and accessories
have been installed in the bathrooms (Fig. K. /(). New tile has been installed in the
bathrooms, although remnants of what appear to be the original tile remain in the bathtub
surround and shower walls of the two remaining original bathrooms. Wood shutters have
been added. Kitchen cabinets and appliances have been replaced. The tile on the pool
bar counters and floor has been replaced. The original fireplace still remnains, although
new surrounds have replaced the original. New outlets, switches and light fixtures have
replaced the original.

Significant Character-Defining Features

The Schiff House is significant because it is an example of modern architecture designed
by the late, noted architect, Albert Frey. Although the alterations are less than fifty years
old, the date of the alterations is approaching that time duration and it is a good example
of the desert modern architecture that he defined. The major character-defining features
include the semi-circular glass and metal pool enclosure (Fig. K.5); the flat roof with
curved overhangs (Fig. K.2); the curvilinear pool; the corrugated metal screen wall and
stepped retaining wall; the circular skylights; the curved wall corners of the protruding
bedroom addition in the front; the extant wood shake-covered gable roof; and the semi-
private setting maintained by building separation.
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The interior finishes have been significantly altered and have lost their integrity. The
house should be preserved and any proposed alterations conform to the Secretary of
Interior’s Standards. It is especially noted that it is important to preserve the modern
style features of the house including the pool enclosure, roof overhang and skylights.
Alteration of interior finishes and previously altered portions of the building would be
allowable because they are contemporary and have not acquired their own level of
significance. Previously altered portions include the south bathroom, which was
completely remodeled in 1999. However, the plan should generally be maintained unless
evidence can be provided that they were not original at the time of Frey s alteration.

L Boardroem Buildings, (L1) - Boardroom 1 and (L2) - Boardroom 2

Background and Setting

The two buildings located at the front, southeast comer of the property are currently used
as boardrooms (Site Plan 11.1). They were originally constructed as guest cottages, but
were converted at some unknown date. The plan layout originally conformed to the

_ small, three-unit layout similar to Bungalows J6, }7, J8 and J9, which are the closest
bungalows in proximity to these buildings. They were constructed at the same time as
Bungalows J6, J7 and J8. When the buildings were altered, the stepped recesses of the
original building design were filled-in, making the buildings completely rectangular in
plan.

They are oriented diagonally from North Indian Canyon Drive. They were sited along
the banks of the former Netcher’s Creek, similar to the other bungalows built at the same
time. There are several mature trees immediately west of the two buildings that appear to
be from the original construction.

Construction Features

The buildings are one-story, wood-framed construction on concrete slab. The style of the
building is typical California Bungalow with a painted stucco exterior and wood shake,
gable roof (Fig. L1.1, L2.1). There is a masonry chimney that protrudes at the apex of the
gable. The front entry elevations, however, are clad with wood board and batten siding
coinciding with the area of the building addition. Both buildings also have a wood
veranda constructed later along the entire front elevation, which covers a concrete patio
and the entry doors (Fig. L1.1, L2.2). The veranda is an open structure consisting of a
beam on posts framing the open side and purlins on top of the beam. The purlins span to
and hang on a ledger at the exterior building wall. A row of sub-purlins on top provides
shading.

Exterior Elevation Features

The front exterior elevation consists of two metal sliding glass doors on both sides of a
large, picture window and French door at the main entry (Fig, L2.1). These openings
were altered at the time of the building conversion. Contemporary lantem light fixtures
flank the entry doors and across the front elevation, Af the rear elevation of L1-
Boardroom 1, a pair of French doors was added for additional exiting from the main
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meeting room. The two original metal casement windows remain at the rear, building
corner where the bathrooms are located. These two windows also remain at the rear
elevation of L2-Boardroom 2, although a solid panel single-lcaf exit door is used instead
of the pair of French doors. In addition, the original casement window remains in the
middle of the rear elevation. However, the return section of the window comer was
removed and the end framed in when the building envelope was altered. A shed lean-to
water closet was added on the left, rear elevation of Building L1. The sides are plain,
solid stucco with the exception of a rectangular window opening on the west (side)
elevation of Building L2 (Fig. L2.1, lef?).

Interior Features

The interiors consist of a large, open and rectangular meeting room that occupies most of
the right portion of the building area, oriented from the front entry (Fig. L2.3). The
interior walls were removed to create the larger room and glue-laminated beams were
introduced to span the longer distance. The meeting rooms are finished with wood wall-
paneling, carpet and texture ceiling. The light fixtures are surface-mounted fluorescent
boxes. The original fireplace still remains, although it has a new brick surround (Fig.
L2.3). There is a smaller, rectangular meeting room located on the other front corner of
the buiiding. The wall finishes in the remainder of the building are painted gypsum board
or plaster. There are storage closets between the two meeting rooms. A wet bar was also
installed between the two meetings rooms in Building L2. The original bathroom layouts
remain in the rear, left corner of the buildings. However, the bathrooms have new
fixtures and finishes. Building L.1 retained the toilet and sink portion of the original
second bathroom, although the fixtures and finishes have been replaced. In Building L2,
the second bathroom was replaced with a kitchen.

Significant Character-Defining Features

These two buildings have some significance because they were part of the original
development of cottages in 1945. However, the cottages have lost most of their integrity.
The building footprint and roof outline has changed, the roof materials replaced, the
Jfront building material altered, most of the original window and door openings altered, a
large majority of the original walls have been removed and finishes and fixtures have all
been replaced. The use was also changed to be used as meeting facilities. Because of the
previous alterations, which removed or altered historic fabric, the inierior layouts,
finishes and openings can be altered where they were already altered. It is desirable for
the buildings themselves to remain, but as mentioned, they have lost most of their
integrity. Removal of these buildings is possible because of this loss of integrity.

SITE FEATURES

M Tennis Courts

Background and Setting
There are currently twelve tennis courts at the Racquet Club. They are grouped into three
sets of two courts each and one set of six courts (Plans 11.1). The two original courts
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(Courts 1 and 2)(Fig. M.I} are located at the northeast comer of the property,
immediately adjacent to the north side of the Bamboo Lounge. The next oldest courts
(Courts 3 an 4) (Fig. M.2), which were expanded with four additional courts, extend
south of the Bamboo Lounge and main entry and southeast of the main pool and Farrell
House. In addition, there is a pair of courts (Center Courts) (Fig. M.3) west of the main
pool and northwest of the Farrell House that is recessed with seating steps on the north
side. The final pair of courts (Northwest Courts) (Fig. M.4) is located on the north
property line between the housekeeping buildings and the contemporary 2 story residence
buildings.

All of the tennis courts are concrete hardcourts and have been resurfaced and restriped to
maintain a good-condition playing surface. They were all resurfaced with the exception
of the Northwest Courts in 1999. They have also been upgraded with chain-link
separation fences and replacement nets.

None of the original braced, wood fences from the original courts | and 2 or courts 3 and
4 remain. There are several original wood posts that appear to be from the original fence
on the northwest side of courts I and 2 that remain, but are in poor condition. The fences
from the original courts have been replaced by chain link. The fence at the southeast side
of Courts 1 and 2 was replaced by a block wall that forms the rear wall of the hotel office
extension (Fig A.13). The Center Courts are contemporary and have always been
surrounded by chain link fence. The northwest courts are bounded on the west side and
partially on the south side by chain link fence. The north and east sides are surrounded
by the original wood fence that is in fair, but damaged condition. The wood fence is
constructed of wood posts, braced at the top and with three horizontal members below. 1t
is faced with vertical boards, each cut at the top to form a single, central point.

Lighting has been added to most of the courts. The original tennis Court 2 was converted
to a site for a pavilion during its use as a Hotel del Coronado Resort and later as a
baskethall court according to 1996 Alta Survey. It was subsequently restored as a tennis
court.

Significan

The tennis courts were the central focus of the Racquet Club and the reason for its
existence, Courts | and 2 are of primary significance because they are the origination
point of the Racquet Club development, and the first feature constructed on the site (Fig.
13). Courts 3 and 4 were installed closely thereafter and were in place at the time the
Racquet Club was formed (Fig. Hist-13). However, they have been significantly altered
and have become less important as the club developed. It isn’t known when the
Northwest Courts were installed, but they didn't exist in a 1948 photograph (Fig. Hist-
13) and do not have the significance of the original courts. In addition, the Center
Courts are a relatively recent addition in 1969 and the four additional courts south of
Courts 3 and 4 are later additions.

Courts I and 2 are significant character-defining features and should be preserved
although they have been altered. Courts 3 and 4 have been significantly altered and have
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lost much of their integrity. These courts and the remaining tennis courts are either not
significant or have lost their integrity, which allows them to be altered or removed.

N Main Pool

Background and Setting

The main pool was one of the earliest features to be constructed on the site (Figs. His¢-1,
Hist-13). It is alipned with the forty-five degree orientation to North Indian Canyon
Drive along with the original tennis courts 1 and 2. It was originally filled with irrigation
water from the back of the property. '> The light blue pool is rectangular and just short of
Olympic size."” 1t is recessed and almost flushes with the ground and has a concrete deck
surrounding all four sides (Fig. N.1). The deck is wide and was used to hold eating
tables, awnings, and reclining chairs on all four sides (Fig. N.2).

When it was originally constructed, it was just bounded on the northeast by the original
clubhouse, tennis courts 1 and 2 and to the southeast by tennis courts 3 and 4 (Fig. 13).
The pool was heated early on at the suggestion of the Davis Company, the contractor for
the pool."* The Farrell House was later added along its southern edge and two recessed
courts were also subsequently added along its western edge (Site Plan 11.1). The pool
had a diving board located at the center of the south side that no longer exists. A color
photograph in the 1950°s show that it was clad with blue or turquoise tile at some point.
The tile was brick-shaped in a stacked pattern with soldier coursing at the top course.

Although the tennis courts were the main attraction and reason for the Racquet Club’s
existence, the main pool was constructed within the first year and quickly became the
central organizing point of the club’s main buildings and later tennis court additions. It 1s
probably the feature that best maintains the integrity of its original construction.

The main pool was also significant because it was the gathering place for many guests to
lounge, swim and eat. There was a regular Sunday Brunch and popular fashion show
held around the pool.'® Its importance as a gathering place for stars is recorded in
numerous photographs of movie stars around the pool, including Cary Grant, Marilyn
Monroe, Tony Curtis, Mickey Rooney, Spencer Tracy to name a few.

Significance

The main pool is one of the most significant character-defining features of the Racquet
Club, As previously mentioned, it retains its original form and associated pool deck.

This site feature should be preserved. Restoring the original tile surround at the pool
would be recommended. Any improvements that are considered should carefully maintain
the Secreiary of Inlerior’s Standards for Rehabilitation,

O Netcher’s Creek
Background and Setting

Netcher’s Creek ran east-west through the central portion of the current property. It was
a gently curving, relatively shallow ditch that at times carried reservoir water from the
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Whitewater Holding tank constructed in 1930 to serve the local area (Fig. Hist-13). it
was filled-in at some point before 1967, as shown in a photograph, and no longer exists
(Fig. Hist-11). Its location was significant because it provided the southern boundary of
the initial development and the later addition of cottages were organized and roughly
oriented along the southern banks of the creek. It was named after Townsend Netcher, a
member of the Racquet Club, for an unknown reason. A footbridge was constructed to
cross the creek that still exists (See Accessory Structure “T”).

Significance

The creek obviously lost its integrity when it was covered over and its features lost.
However, hints of the original route remains from the location of the central driveway,
the siting of the cottages nearby, and the footbridge that remains. There is no creek lefi
to preserve and has lost too much integrity to be restored.

P Landscaping and Hardscape

Background and Setting

The landscaping and hardscape went largely undeveloped at the site for a period of time.
As previously mentioned, the landscaping was originally mostly sagebrush, cactus,
tamarisk trees and dirt and sand. Indigenous vegetation was sparsely scattered, but more
concentrated along Netcher’s Creek.

The first improvements consisted of clearing and leveling only the immediate area that
was being developed. The first introduction of additional landscaping was approximately

in 1934 when the gardener and Ralph Bellamy planted eucalyptus trees presumably to
shelter the tennis courts from the strong spring desert winds (Fig. Hist-1).'® After Charlie
and Virginia Farrell bought out Bellamy’s share of the Racquet Club, they worked on
expanding it and introduced additional landscaping, including flowers and creeping-bent

grass."”

Currently, the original row of eucalyptus trees along the northern property line still exist
and now function as a screen to the adjacent property. It appears, however, that about
160 feet of the eastemn portion of this row of trees was removed at some point (Fig. Hist-
14). Trees and bushes are scattered throughout property and are located to in close
proximity to most of the buildings and line the parking areas and several hardscape
edges. The most mature trees appear to be located adjacent to the front entrance, near
many of the cottage buildings and along the aforementioned north property line.

It is highly unlikely that the smaller, less mature trees elsewhere are significant because
of their estimated age and their apparent landscape design intent. These are trees that
formally line the parking lot areas, driveways, concrete pathways and are adjacent to
newer buildings, such as the two-story residences. This deduction is made by their height
and the fact that they intentionally address construction that is obviously contemporary.
In addition, many open areas have been covered with grass.
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The parking lots, driveways and pathways have been modified continually and resurfaced
over time. The parking lots and driveways are all asphalt with curbs only at the front
parking lot and service areas. There appears to be no evidence of significance of the
parking and driveway layout.

The pathways are constructed from concrete. They are mostly curvilinear in layout,
compatible with the scattered, twisting layout of the cottage buildings. The pathways
continually evolved over time as additional buildings were added. The most significant
path location would include the pathiway that includes the Netcher Creek Footbridge.

Significant Character-Defining Features

The significant character-defining features of the landscaping and hardscape would
include the eucalyptus trees that line the north property line, and the mature trees
interspersed adjacent to the cotiages. The significant landscape items mentioned should
be preserved and maintained properly. Because of the significant amount of resurfacing
and additions to the hardscape areas, it appears to lack the integrity to prevent future
alterations. Other than these features, there appears to be no requirement to preserve or
prohibit alterations to other landscaping and hardscape. It should be noted, however,
that a thorough listing and comprehensive analysis of all existing landscape material was
beyond the scope of this report.

Q Pool at Cottage (Unit 66)

Background and Setiing

The pool is one of three located on the site. It is located adjacent (immediately west) of
Cotlage (Unit 66) (Site Plan 11.1). The pool is recessed and flush with the concrete deck
that surrounds it (Fig. (0.5). It is surfaced with light blue pool plaster and has a
decorative blue tile band at the top and rounded —concrete coping surround at the deck
edge. Itis surrounded by a painted, concrete block wall around three sides and faces the
cottage at the east (rear) elevation. The pool was installed at an unknown date, possibly in
1965 as part of a renovation by George Alexander, but is of relatively recent
contemporary construction.

Significance :
This site feature is not within the period of significance and has no significant character-
defining features. There would be no requirement to preserve or prohibit alterations to

this site feature.
R Spa

Background and Setting

The spa is located adjacent (immediately west) of the Bogart Room and Terrace Room
dining addition and in proximity to the main pool (Site Plan 11.1). The spa is made of
fiberglass and is recessed into a raised concrete deck with concrete masonry retaining
walls. It is surrounded by a black, wrought iron fence at the front and wood slat fencc at
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the rear (Fig. R.1). The spa was installed at an unknown date, but is of relatively recent
contemporary construction.

Significance

This site feature is not within the period of significance and has no significant character-
defining features. There would be no requirement to preserve or prohibit alterations to
this site feature.

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

S Security Shack

Background and Setting

The security shack 1s located at the south parking entrance adjacent to North indian
Canyon Drive (Site Plan 11.1). The structure was used as a security access control point
for the parking lot. It is a one-story, single room, building with hip roof (Fig. §.1). Itis
made of simple, wood framed construction covered with stucco and has a flat, clay tile
roof. The structure was constructed at an unconfirmed date, but more recently than a
circa 1980’s aerial photograph. It most likely is the parking kiosk constructed under a
1983 building permit.

Significance

The building is not within the period of significance and has no significant character-
defining features. There would be no requirement to preserve or prohibit alterations to
this structure.

T Netcher’s Creek Covered Footbridge

Background and Setting

The footbridge is a covered, wood frame structure that once spanned Netcher’s Creek
when it was still flowing (Fig. Hist-13). Itis located at the center of the site and connects
the center tennis courts and Farrell House to the cottages at the southwest portion of the
site (Site Plan 11.1). It has a gable roof with wood shingles over 1x wood sheathing on
wood rafiers, supported by wood posts. It is paneled with decorative lattice along the
long sides of the structure (Fig. T.1). The lattice has openings for viewing between each
support post. The footbridge was constructed in 1957 by someone named Harry Oliver.
It is “characteristic of design elements in 1930s hotel architecture in Palm Springs”.18 It
was constructed shortly after the time the first phase of cottages on the other side of the
creek were constructed.

The footbridge lost a significant character-defining feature when the creek was filled-in at
some unknown date. It is in poor to fair, but repairable condition. The structure is
leaning and although the cover structure remains, the original bridge itself was removed
when the creek was filled-in and replaced with an asphalt walkway (Fig. 7.2).
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Significance

The footbridge structure should be preserved and repaired as a character-defining
Jfeature of the site. However, it is noted that the original setting was severely modified
and its original purpose as a bridge spanning water has changed, reducing the
significance of its current setting.

u Gazebo

Background and Setting

The gazebo is located at the northwest comer of the property (Site Plan 11.1). The
structure is sited at the end of a relatively flat, grass area and provides a shaded, private
retreat. It is an octagonal shaped wood framed structure with a stepped, wood shingle
roof topped with an octagonal cupola (Fig. U.1). It has a wood deck with wood railing
around its perimeter. The structure was constructed at an unknown date, but more
recently than a circa 1980’s aerial photograph. It is also not shown on a 1983 or a 1996
survey of the site.

Significance
The structure is not within the period of significance and has no significant character-

defining features that would diclate the requirement to preserve or prohibit alterations to
this structure.
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6.1 OVERVIEW

The buildings and structures of the Racquet Club are on the City of Palm Spring’s
potential list of historic resources. Although not listed as a local or state historic resource
yet, the Racquet Club should be eligible and would likely eventually be registered

locally. For historic resources, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines
for Rehabilitation are relevant in planning for appropriate rehabilitation work.

6.2  HISTORIC PRESERVATION STANDARDS

The Secretary of the Interior has established standards for historic preservation projects to
guide work undertaken on historic buildings. It is the goal of these standards to preserve
historic materials and to preserve a building’s individual character.

A technical brief, which describes how to identify the character-defining features of a
building comments:

“A complete understanding of any property may require documentary research
about its style, construction, function, its furnishing or contents; knowledge about
the original builder, owners, and later occupants; and knowledge about the
evolutionary history of the building. Even though buildings may be of historic,
rather than architectural significance, it is their tangible elements that embody its
significance for association with specific events or persons and it is those tangible
elements both on the exterior and interior that should be preserved.”

The Standards for Historic Preservation Projects address treatments and approaches
including preservation?, rehabilitation’, restoration”® and reconstruction®. These standards
contain a number of general principles, which apply to all treatments. Additionally, there
are some principles for specific treatments.

The most commonly used aspect of these standards are the Standards for Rehabilitation
(the “Standards”). The Standards were initially developed to assess the appropriateness
of proposed work on historic projects seeking Federal grants. Because retention of the
significant character-defining features is desired, a large amount of previously altered
features and new uses may be required, the most predominant treatment should be
rehabilitation.

The Standards for Rehabilitation are as follows:
1. A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that

requires minimal change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, and
spatial relationships.
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2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The
removal of distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial
relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

3. Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and
use. Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as
adding conjectural features or elements from other historic properties, will
not be undertaken.

4. Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own
right will be retained and preserved.

5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction technigues or
examples of craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved.

6. Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where
the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the
new feature will match the old in design, color, texture, and, where possible,
materials. Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by
documentary and physical evidence.

7. Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the
gentlest means possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials
will not be used.

8. Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such
resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not
destroy historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize
the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be
compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion,
and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in
a such a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity
of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.

Additional Standards that may be applicable involve restoration. For restoration projects,
specific standards include:

3. Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and
use, Work needed to stabilize, consolidate and conserve materials and
Jeatures from the restoration period will be physically and visually
compatible, identifiable upon close inspection, and properly documented for
Juture research.

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report Ociober 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA




6.0 Guidelines And Recommendations For Rehabilitation Page 6-3

4. Materials, features, spaces, and finishes that characterize other historical
periods will be documented prior to their alteration or removal.

7. Replacement of missing features from the restoration period will be
substantiated by documentary and physical evidence. A false sense of history
will not be created by adding conjectural features, features from other
properties, or by combining features that never existed rogether historically.

The Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings were developed to assist property
owners and managers in applying the general Standards listed above. The guidelines
contain a specific hierarchy for decision-making in assessing the rehabilitation of any
historic building. First, the significant materials and features of a building must be
identified. Then a method for their retention and preservation must be found. If the
physical condition of character-defining materials warrants additional work, repair 18
recommended. If deterioration or damage precludes repair, then replacement can be
considered.

In addition to the rehabilitation of character-defining features, the Standards and
Guidelines also address alterations and additions to historic buildings, as well as
retrofitting for health and safety requirements. Some interior and exterior alterations to a
historic building may be needed to assure its continued use. These modifications should
not, however, obscure or require removal of character-defining features of the structure.

The introduction to the Standards states that:

“Some exterior and interior alterations to the historic building are generally
needed to assure its continued use, but it is most important that such alterations do
not radically change, obscure, or destroy character-defining spaces, materials,
features, or finishes...”

This general philosophy of the retention of character defining features within the
framework of rehabilitating the historic building for continued use should guide the
future rehabilitation of the Racquet Club.
Section 5 describes the character-defining features of the main buildings and structures of
the Racquet Club.

6.3 RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations are based upon standard historic preservation practices
for documentation, rehabilitation, and maintenance.
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RESEARCH AND DOCUMENTATION

A general history of the Racquet Club has been provided in this report, as well as the
construction history of the building. These sections are based on a reasonable amount of
investigation of written and photographic resources available to the research team at the
time of this writing. Additional research and documentation might include:

L. Measured drawings of the buildings. The only floor plans located were
late remodel plans of the Farrell House and the 2 Story Contemporary
Buildings. Floor plans in Appendix A are provided as to approximate
scale and not intended to be accurate measured drawings. Measured
drawings are not part of the scope of this report.

2. A compilation of all historic photographs relating to the property. Most
significant possible sources of photographs were investigated.

3. Evaluation of existing conditions. Significant locations where
deterioration has occurred are noted in Section 5.0 Architectural
Description. Further evaluation would be recommended to evaluate
condition of existing materials and structural integrity.

4, Thorough evaluation of landscaping. Significant landscape features are
noted in Section 5.0 Architectural Description. Thorough research,
documentation and evaluation of all landscaping was beyond the scope of
this report.

REHABILITATION

Future rehabilitation of the Racquet Club should conform to the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards and Guidelines for Rehabilitation.

When any rehabilitation work is performed, thorough documentation, including plans,
detailed specifications and photographs before, during and afier construction, should be
prepared and appropriately archived.
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MAINTENANCE

A maintenance plan for the Racquet Club is recommended to be developed to ensure that
character-defining elements are kept in good condition and that systems are functional.
Deferred maintenance can be extremely damaging to historic buildings. Correction of
severely deteriorated elements often leads to a more severe and costly degree of
intervention. The maintenance plan should contain a schedule to evaluate the following
items on z regular basis:

l. Roofs.
2. Window and door Openingé.
3. Exterior repair, including paint.

4. Mechanical systems.

5. Electrical systems.

6. Plumbing systems.

7. Interior improvements.
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7.0 BRIEF ANAILYSIS OF POSSIBLE CONCEPTS

The Racquet Club is currently closed and for sale at the time of the wnting of this report.
In order to ensure that the club becomes economically viable once again, which is
essential for the protection of this resource, potential new owners may consider several
development concepts. This section will briefly summarize and comment on several
possible concepts. A brief list of possible uses and concepts include:

1. HOTEL USE (MAINTAIN ORIGINAL USE)

As stated in Section 6.0, the Standards for Rehabilitation, “A property will be used as it
was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal change to its distinctive
materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships.”

Maintaining the historical use of a building 1s the preferred option. However, it is
recognized that buildings evolve over time and that alternative uses may be required.
Current and future market trends may or may not support the hotel use.

The hote! use will require minimal impact on the Racquet Club. Most required functions
of a hotel are already accommodated within the existing buildings.

Expansion Opportunities

Generally, uses should be accommodated within existing buildings, if possible, before
additions are considered. Additional units may be added by building supplemental
buildings provided they are designed so as to not adversely impact character-defining
features. Proximity to adjoining buildings and location on the site would affect the
compatibility of the proposed buildings’ size and height.

The most likely opportunity for expansion is in the existing open areas and where non-
significant tennis courts can be removed. Additions to individual buildings may be
possible, but should be looked at on an individual basis and meet the Standards.

2. CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT (ADAPTIVE REUSE)

Conversion to condominium use will most likely require minimat impact on the Racquet
Club. The main residential units can easily be converted. One possible amenity that
cannot be easily accommodated would be to move the personal parking spaces much
closer than where they currently exist. Placing carports in the immediate vicinity of the
bungalows would probably adversely impact the character-defining features of the
building.

As mentioned, additional units may be added provided they meet the Secretary of
Interior’s Guidelines for building additions in order to protect “distinctive materials,
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features, spaces, and spatial relationships™. (See Expansion Opportunities section above).
The main buildings may be converted for more specific uses provided the conversion
requires minimal changes to the buildings.

One possibility to note is that the uses in the main buildings may be used to also serve
adjacent condominium developments. These developments were at one tiimme connected
to the Racquet Club and were once served by the club’s restaurant and facilities.
Agreements with other condominium associations may help support uses in the main
buildings.

3. APARTMENT DEVELOPMENT (ADAPTIVE REUSE)
See comments to condominium development. Use will have similar impact.

4. OTHER USES (ADAPTIVE REUSE)

Other compatible uses are feasible for the Racquet Club. However, because of the
number of residential units on the site, it would be difficult to reuse these buildings unless
the new use can utilize these buildings without significant modifications to the plans.

Other compatible uses that would not require significant modifications include, but are
not limited to: Office spaces, executive retreat, and artists live/work units. Compatible
uses for the main buildings may include: a gym, gallery/exhibit space or reconverting to
residential use in the Farrell House; a multi-purpose room, mecting room or clubhouse in
the Dining Building; a gym/juice bar in the Bamboo Bar.
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8.0  BRIEF REVIEW OF PRESERVATION INCENTIVES

This section is intended as a brief summary and review of possible preservation
incentives available for the Racquet Club. There is no guarantee that the Racquet Club
will qualify for these incentives. In fact, it is intended to include as many incentives as
possible to avoid omitting possible ones.

Some incentives such as disabled access tax credits for accessibility barrier removal are
available for most any property. Most preservation related incentives such as the ability
to utilize the State Historic Building Code and the 20% Rehabilitation Tax Credit
requires the building(s) to be listed as a historic resource at some level (city, state,
national). In addition, many of these such as the 20% Rehabilitation Tax Credit require
submittal of an application to determine eligibility. Finally, some incentives will require
higher thresholds such as being listed on the National Register of Historic Places.

The following summarics arc cxcerpts from the State of California Office of Historic
Preservation’s publication, Incentives for Historic Preservation in Califomia.

FEDERAL INCENTIVES

20% REHABILITATION TAX CREDIT
Preservation Tax Incentives for Historic Buildings

Tax credits provide an important tool in the rehabilitation of historic properties. This
federal program provides a dollar-for-dollar income tax reduction credit equal to 20% of
qualified rehabilitation expendifures on income producing properties that are certified
historic structures. Certified historic structures are either individually listed in the
National Register of Historic Places (NRHP), or are contributors to a NRHP District.
Properties not yet listed may apply for a preliminary determination of eligibility by filing
a Part 1 form.

The property must be rehabilitated following the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for
Rehabilitation (1990). The project costs must exceed either $5000 or the adjusted basis of
the building, whichever is higher. For larger projects, developers typically enter into a
partnership with “tax credit investors™ to more efficiently use the tax credit benefits. The
developer serves as general partner with the fax credit investor being a limited partner,
making an equity contribution to the project in exchange for the tax credit benefits. Under
certain circumstances, non-profit organizations may also enter into such a partnership to
allow their projects to benefit from the tax credit.

This is one of the most successful and cost-effective community revitalization programs
which also attracts private investment in the historic cores of cities and towns. New jobs,
enhanced property values, urban renewal, new municipal revenues, improved properties,
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and a lively, diverse and attractive community are other benefits realized from completed
projects,

PROGRAM GUIDELINES
The Tax Incentives program is implemented by federal regulations under 36 CFR Part 67
and is a three-way partnership between the local state Office of Histonic Preservation
(SHPO), the National Park Service (INPS), and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS):

SHPO

First point of contact
Provides forms,
reguiations,

and other information
Maintains records

of State’s National

NPS

Processes program fees
Reviews all applications
for conformance with
the

Standards

Issues all certifications

IRS

Publishes regulations
goverming which
rehabilitation expenses
qualify for credits

Sets time periods for
incurring expenses

) I;eglster p;operu;s (approval or denial)in  ® Has procedural and
li:‘t’i‘;egsses ortns for writing to owner legal oversight for

Assists with information
or appropriate

Transmits copies of
documents to the IRS

claiming 20% and 10%
credits

i Develops and publishes * Publishes audit guide
SISO s Dognrmision, he o francil o e
e Assists with tax credit Sta.nfiarc'ls, other aspects
applications and sends publications and » Insm.’es that Ofﬂy '
. ) maintains a web-site qualified parties claim
project review to NPS the credits
APPLICATION

¢ Contact the SHPO for forms and to determine whether your property is National
Register eligible. Forms and information may be downloaded from the NPS website
or the CA SHPO website link.

o File a Part I (Evaluation of Significance) to start the program (individually listed
properties do not need to file a Part 1, unless the listing consists of more than one
building. Photos and a location map are important components of the application.

o File the Part 2 (Description of Rehabilitation Work) to clearty describe all the project
work and how historic fabric might be affected. One of the most critical parts of the
Part 2 is a photo of “before” conditions so the NPS may compare the building before
and after work. Lack of such photos can result in denial of the project, as review
cannot be completed without them. Drawings should accompany the Part 2
application.

¢ File the Part 3 (Request for Certification of Completed Work) after work is
completed. Include photos of completed work, taken from the same locations as
“before” photos. When filing the Part 3 be sure to contact your accountant or
financial advisor for the details of claiming the credit. In certain instances, alternative
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minimum taxes and passive activity limitations may limit the use of the rehabilitation
tax credits.

» All submissions should be submitted in duplicate form. OHP retains one original
copy and forwards the second original copy to NPS.

Most tax incentive rehabilitation projects are completed in a two-year cycle and the
credits are claimed when the Part 3 is filed. For complex projects, or those with complex
financing, it is possible to request a five-year, phased program. This must be done at the
time the Part 2 is filed and must be accompanied by a detailed explanation of the phases.
Credits may be taken in increments during the five-year period by filing a Continuation
Sheet explaining the completion of a work phase. It is important to be aware that the
whole project is reviewed, and later work if not done in accordance with the Standards,
may result in denial and recapture of the previous credits granted.

FURTHER INFORMATION:
NPS Heritage Preservation Services

Internal Revenue Service

Federal Regulations 36 CFR Part 67

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION
PURPOSES
(Conservation Easements)

Preservation Tax Incentives for Historic Buildings

Internal Revenue Service Code Section 170¢h) and Department of Treasury Regulations
Section 1.170A-14 provide for income and estate deductions for charitable contributions
of partial interests in historic property {principally easements). Valuations usually range
from 10-15% of the structure’s fair market value. To qualify, the gift of an easement for
conservation purposes such as the preservation of the facade of a certified historic
structure must be made to a holding entity and must be protected in perpetuity.
Easements may be made for a facade, a building exterior {and its grounds), historicalty
important building interiors, or for development rights for historically important land
areas {open space agreements). Easements become part of the chain of title and bind
present and future owners. However, establishment of such restrictions does not prevent
the property owner from retaining possession and use of the property. Exterior work may
need fo be reviewed for appropriateness, but any interior modifications are at the
discretion of the owner, unless the easement is for a significant interior.
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ELIGIBILITY
The conservation easement donation can be from a structure that is used either for

business or non-business. Personal residences as well as commercial properties may take
advantage of this provision.

The property must only be a “certified historic structure,” which is a property either:

¢ already listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places; or
¢ located in a National Regtster historic district and certified by the Secretary of the
Interior as being of historic significance to the district (a “contributor”).

Properties not yet listed may file if it there is a preliminary determination that the property
is National Register eligible and the nomination form will be filed and the property listed
by the time federal taxes are due in the year following the donation (plus six months
extension time).

PROGRAM GUIDELINES

o Ifthe historic structure is not visible from a public way, amrangements must be
included to permit regular viewing by the general public of its historic character
and features; to the extent such viewing is consistent with the nature and
condition of the property.

o If the property is subject to a mortgage, a special rule is that the mortgagee must
agree to subordinate its rights to the property to the right of the donee to enforce
the conservation purposes in perpetuity.

+ If the value of the donation and deduction exceeds $5000, the taxpayer must
obtain a qualified appraisal and attach a full summary to the income tax return.

o A facade easement may be claimed for a qualified rehabilitated building.
However, if the donation is made within the five year 20% Rehabilitation Tax
Credit recapture period, the donation is considered a partial disposition of the
property and will trigger recapture of ail or part of the rehabilitation credits.

The donation is made only once, but the tax deduction may be distributed over a six-year
period and may usually be claimed on both federal and state tax returns.

FURTHER INFORMATION:

Historic Preservation Easements: A Directory of Historic Preservation Easement
Holding Organizations, Claire Schofield, 2003.

National Park Service

http://www2.cr.ops.gov/tps/tax/easement.htim
NPS Heritage Preservation Services hitp://www2.cr.nps.gov/tps/tax/irsfacade.htm

In the Los Angeles area: LA Conservancy
http:/flaconservancy.org/index.php4
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STATE INCENTIVES

CALIFORNIA HERITAGE FUND - Proposition 40

In 2002, voters approved the California Clean Water, Clean Air, Safe Neighborhood
Parks, and Coastal Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 40), which included $267 million
for historic and cultural resource preservation. The fund is administered by the California
Cultural and Historical Endowment, located in the California State Library Office.

Proposition 40 was specified io fund a range of cultural and asionc resource preservaiion
programs and specified program grants for the acquisition, development, preservation,
and interpretation of buildings, structures, sites, places, and artifacts that preserve and
demonstrate culturally significant aspects of California’s history.

Approximately $128 million will be available to government entities and non-profit
organizations through a competitive grant application process.

ELIGIBLE PROJECTS

Funds are to be used to support projects that help to preserve and demonstrate:

« Culturally significant aspects of life during various periods of California history
including architecture, economic activitics, art, recreation, and transportation

« Unique identifiable ethnic and other communities that have added significant elements
to California’s culture

« California industrial, commercial, and military history including the industries,
technologies, and commercial activities that have characterized California’s economic
expansion and contribution to national defense

= Important paleontologic, oceanographic, and geologic sites and specimens

TIMING

The Endowment will be developing program guidelines and application materials. Public
hearings are in process on the guidelines with public comment and review welcome.
Information about the application process and draft guidelines will be posted on the
Endowment’s site when they are available.

FURTHER INFORMATION:
California State Library
California Cultural and Historical Endowment

http://www.library.ca.gov/CCHE/index.cfm
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The Resources Agency has created a website where the public can obtain information
about projects in their community funded by Proposition 40.

State of California Resources Agency Prop 40 Project Award Information

MILLS ACT - California Property Tax Abatement Program

Since 1972 the Mills Act, sponsored by Senator James Mills of Coronado, has provided
property tax relief to help preserve designated historic properties in California. It is a
permissive program subject to approval and adaptation by city and county governments.

In order to help rehabilitate and maintain quaiified histonic properties, the Mills Act
program allows for the voluntary creation of a contract between a private property owner
and the city or county to provide a reduction in property taxes. The property tax relief is
calculated by the county assessor using the capitalization of income method to reflect the
Mills Act restrictions placed on the property. Mills Act properties are subject to annual
reassessments by County Assessors which may result in slight increases in property taxes
each year.

ELIGIBILITY

A property must be a “qualified historic property,” which is a privately owned property
{residential or commercial) not exempt from properiy taxation and is either:

e Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) oras a
contributor to a NRHP District; or

e Listed in any state, county, city, or city and county official register of historical or
architecturally significant places, sites, or landmarks.

NOTE: City or county governments may apply a more limited definition of a qualified
historic property. For example, in Los Angeles only locally designated properties or
contributors to locally designated districts may participate.

PROVISIONS

The following items must be included in the language of the Mills Act contract, although
local historical ordinances may require other provisions:

Contract is for a minimum of 10 years
Any work to restore or rehabilitate the property must follow the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and the California Historical Building

Code
o Inspections as may be necessary to assure compliance with the provisions of the
contract
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¢ Recoguize that the contract is binding on successors in intercst to the original
owner

s Provisions for penalties for termination of contract

The local agency may charge a reasonable fec for administering the program. OHP must
be notified in writing within six months of entering into a contract. Subsequent contract
questions or cancellation may involve review by the California State Historical Resources
Commission.

FURTHER INFORMATION:
OHP Technical Assistance Series #12
http://www.ohp.parks.ca.gov/default.asp?page id=21412

ALTERNATIVE INCENTIVES

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT AND TAX INCENTIVES

With the passage of the American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 1990 (PL. 101-336),
access to properties open to the public is a civil right. Most historical buildings were not
designed to be readily accessible for people with disabilities, yet accommodating people
with disabilities could jeopardize the significance and integrity of the historic nature of
the property. in 1997, this Act was amended to balance accessibility and historic
preservation.

The Americans with Disabilities Act requires equal opportunity for persons with
disabilities in employment, government programs, telecommunications, transportation,
and places of public accommodations, and can be assumed to be all buildings within a
downtown commercial district. To the greatest extent possible, historic properties must
be made as accessible as non-historic properties.

Two tax incentives are available to businesses to help cover the cost of making access
improvements:

DISABLED ACCESS TAX CREDIT (26 USC 44)

» This credit was created in 1990 specifically to help small businesses cover ADA
relatedeligible access expenditures

» This credit cannot be used for new construction. Use is limited for adaptations to
existing facilities that are required to comply with ADA
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» The amount of the credit is equal to 50% of the eligiblc access expenditures in a year,
up to a maximum expenditure of $10,250. There is no credit for the first $250 of
expenditures. The maximum tax credit, therefore, is $5,000.

EXPENDITURES TO REMOVE ARCHITECTURAL AND TRANSPORTATION
BARRIERS TO THE HANDICAPPED AND ELDERLY (26 USC 190)

» This deduction was established under Section 190 to help businesses of any size with
the removal of architectural or transportation barriers.

+ The renovations under Section 190 must comply with applicable accessibility standards
(Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board)

« The amount of the deduction is a maximum of $15,000 per year.

CODES AND REGULATIONS
CALIFORNIA HISTORICAL BUILDING CODE (2001)

The purpose of the California Historical Building Code (CHBC) is to provide regulations for
the preservation, restoration, rehabilitation, relocation or reconstruction of qualified historic
buildings or properties. These regulations are intended to facilitate alternative solutions for
such historic buildings or propertics so as to preserve their original or restored architectural
elements and features. At the same time, it provides for the safety of occupants; for the
reasonable accommodation of people with disabilities, for a cost-effective approach to
preservation, and for reasonable accommodation to the need for energy conservation.

« A "qualified historical building" is defined as any building, site, structure, object,
district or collection of structures, and their associated sites, deemed of importance to the
history, architecture or culture of an area by an appropriate local, state or federal
government jurisdiction.

As defined in its purpose, the CHBC is a source of incentives for the preservation of a
community’s historic resources. And while these provisions are intended to maximize the
protection and preservation of these resources, they also translate into cost-eftectiveness:

» The "triggers" for full upgrading fo current standards, with respect to length of vacancy,
change of occupancy, or percentage of value of the work proposed, and which exist in other
codes, are not recognized by the CHBC, which concentrates instead on the preservation-
sensitive resolution of genuine safety considerations.

+ Structural/Seismic upgrading issues are governed by the CHBC, permitting design based on
real values of archaic materials, and solutions based on engineering principles and
professional judgment, rather than solutions limited to codified prescriptive formulas. This
flexibility usually translates into a higher degree of retention of historic fabric.
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» Because most qualified historical buildings cannot conform to California's energy
standards without the alteration or loss of historic features, they are categorically exempt
from those standards. To the degree practicable, new construction associated with the
historic resource should conform.

» With respect to qualified historical buildings; both ADA and the CHBC make
provisions for reasonable levels of equivalency for, and under special circumstances
exemption from, accessibility mandates.

The CHBC is the governing code for all qualified historical buildings, and is applicable in
every jurisdiction. Responsibility for the CHBC resides within the statutorily established
State Historical Building Safety Board (SHBSB). It is comprised of 21 members from the
entire spectrum of the public, private and non-

Codes and Regulations - 2 - profit sectors related to the issue of historic buildings and 1s
established to recommend rules and regulations associated with the CHBC and to hear
appeals.

The CHBC is published as Chapter 34, Division [I of the California Building Code.
However it is a "stand-alone" document: Part 8 of Title 24 of the California Code of
Regulations, under girded by Statute (Health & Safety Code 18950-18961, cited as the
"State Historical Building Code"), and enacted into law by the California Legislature in
1975.

ACCESS AND HISTORIC RESOURCES

The protection and preservation of the Nation's cultural legacy is, like accessibility
mandates, a reflection of the will of the people of the pation and the state. The ADA
acknowledges the value of historic resources, and only for them does it make exceptions
to its mandates. Recognizing this dual responsibility, we as a society are properly
committed to provide the highest degree of accessibility for people with disabilities that
can be reasonably achieved without peril to our historic resources.

The latitude provided by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the California
Historical Butlding Code (CHBC) provides guidance as to reasonable solutions on a case-
by-case basis. This case-by-case approach both requires and permits us, within
established parameters, to make modifications to facilitate people with disabilities,
providing reasonable levels of equivalency where the letter of the law would exact too
high a toll of the historic resource.

Compromises are something which must be accepted by ardent defenders of both
accessibility and preservation; with the understanding that, while the "desires" of neither
may be fully attainable, the "needs” of both usually are. The "Accessibility” section of the
CHBC (Section 8-6) has been found, thus far, to be a reasonable exposition of the
requirements of ADA. Use of the CHBC, especially when coupled with input from the
local community of people with disabilities, has provided the foundation for successfully
meshing the mandates for both preservation and accessibility.
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9.0 CONCLUSION

The Racquet Club has played a vital role in the history of Palm Springs since Charles
Farrell and Ralph Bellamy opened the club in 1934. It is significant for its role as a
haven for movie stars, promoting the development of Palm Springs. An example of hotel
architecture during the early and mid-twenticth century, it also contains examples of
Architect Albert Frey’s work.

Rehabilitation according to the Secretary of Interior’s Standards will ensure that its
character-defining features are protected and maintained. Rehabilitation will also allow
for the possibility of appropriate adaptive reuses. Since the Racquet Club is currently
closed at the time of writing this report, a viable use is integral in the continued
protection of this historic resource.
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BUILDING J4, COTTAGE BUILDING (ALBERT FREY)
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BUILDING J.5, COTTAGE BUILDING (ALBERT FREY)
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BUILDING J.6, COTTAGE BUILDING (ALBERT FREY)

_:';:'_'.:.:;:I— i L . |
S [
— e —l I - —r l &
- i
E |
. \_J ]
| SN
7
| g At
= 32
g;m
SCALE: 3/32%=]1".0"
Units 32-34
Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report ~ October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA



Appendix A- Site Plan and Floor Plans

Page 11.1-J.7

BUILDING J.7,

COTTAGE BUILDING (ALBERT FREY)

[U\J
n

&

SCAI F: 3/32%=1"-0"

h
(0%
~1

Units 35-

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

_ October 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA



1.1 Appendix A- Site Plan and Floor Plans Page 11.1-1.8

BUILDING J.8,

COTTAGE BUILDING (ALBERT FREY)

e 4 i !n
l Lod
o =8 |
= ‘
] 1 |
. ) I
|
24
\ ; ]
L %
= DS N |
.’/ —
40 —
[
l eg
Units 38-40
Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA



11.1 Appendix A- Site Plan and Floor Plans Page 11.1-).9
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BUILDING K SCHIFF HOUSE (ALBERT FREY ADDITION)
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View of Rear of Entrance lobby

Figure A.2 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building
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BUILDING "A" PICTURES

Figure A.4 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building
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BUILDING "A" PICTURES

Figure A.5 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building View of Office Addition Exterior

Figure A.6 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building
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BUILDING "A" PICTURES

Figure A.8 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building
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BUILDING "A" PICTURES

Figure A.9 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building View of Entrance Lobby

Figure A.10 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building View of Typical Office Space
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Figure A.12 Building "A"- Lobby/ Office Building
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Figure B.] Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

View of South Elevation

Figure B.2 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of North Elevation

_October 8, 2004
Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "B" PICTURES

e — 5 .

Figure B.4 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.2-B.2

October 8, 2004
[.os Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "B" PICTURES

Figure B.5 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Figure B.6 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

__October 8. 2004

Loos Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "B" PICTURES

Figure B.7 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Figure B.8 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of South Porch

October 8, 2004
L.os Angeles, CA
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__Appendix B- Photos of Existing Conditions

BUILDING "B" PICTURES

Figure B.9 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Half Round End of Bamboo Bar

Figure B.10 Building "B"- Bamboo Lounge/ Pro Shop

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

End of Building at Pro Shop

October 8. 2004
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BUILDING "C" PICTURES

View of Bogart Room Roof

Figure C.2 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Roof Cupola

_October 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "C" PICTURES

View of South Dining
Room Addition

Figure C.4 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of North Side

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "C" PICTURES

{"._,.)

Figure C.5 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building View of West Kitchen Addition

Figure C.6 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Typical View of Kitchen

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "C" PICTURES

Page 11.2-C4

Figure C.7 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

View of Bogart Room and
South DiningRoom Addition

Figure C.8 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Bogart Room Stage

__October 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "C" PICTURES

o

_Page 11.2-C.5

Bamboo Lounge

Figure C.10 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Ceiling

October 8, 2004
L.os Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "C" PICTURES

__Page 11.2-C.6

Figure C.11 Building "C"- Kitchen and Dining Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Typical Restroom

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles. CA
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Figure D.1 Building "D"- Farrell House View of Front (North) Elevation

Figure D.2 Building "D"- Farrell House

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects
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BUILDING "D'" PICTURES

Figure D.3 Building "D"- Farrell House View of West Elevation

Figure 1.4 Building "D"- Farrell House View of East Elevation
Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report , ~ October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "D" PICTURES

Page 11.2-D.3

Figure D.5 Building "D"- Farrell House

Figure D.6 Building "D"- Farrell House

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View of Front Window

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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Figure D.7 Building "D"- Farrell House

i

Iy

Page 11.2-D 4

View of Meeting Room

Figure D.8 Building "D"- Farrell House

Palm Spring
John Ash Gr

oup Architects

[Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "D" PICTURES

J

Page 11.2-D.5

Figure D.9 Building "D"- Farrell House

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Front Door

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "E" PICTURES

Figure E.1 Building 'E'- Cottage Building View of Cottage Interior

Figure E.2 Building 'E'- Cottage Building View of Cottage Interior

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report ~ Octobe
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "E" PICTURES

Figure E.3 Building 'E'- Cottage Building

s

View of East End of South Elevation

Figure E.4 Building 'E'- Cottage Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

View of "L" Corner

_ October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "E" PICTURES

Figure E.5 Building 'E'- Cottage Building

View of West End of South Elevation

Figure E.6 Building 'E'- Cottage Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View of South Elevation

October 8. 2004

" Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "E" PICTURES

Figure E.7 Building 'E'- Cottage Building

View of West Elevation

Figure E.8 Building 'E'- Cottage Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Maintenance Oftfice

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "F" PICTURES

Page 11.2-F.1

Figure F.] Building "F"- Housekeeping Building

Figure F.2 Building "F"- Housekeeping Building

quet Club Historic Report
Architects

View at Infill Connection to
the Cottage Building

__Octaober 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "F" PICTURES

Figure F.3 Building "F"- Housekeeping Building

Interior View of Laundry Room

Figure F.4 Building "F"- Housekeeping Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Interior View of Storage Area

October 8. 2004
Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "F" PICTURES

Figure F.3 Building "F"- Housekeeping Building View of North Elevation Transition
Between Infill and Cottage Building

Figure F.6 Building "F"- Housekeeping Building Interior View of Transition Between
Infill Area and Cottage Building

_ October 8, 2004

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report (
Angeles, CA

John Ash Group Architects
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BUILDING "F" PICTURES

Page 11.2-F.4

Figure F.7 Building "F"- Housekeeping Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of South Elevation

October 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "G" PICTURES

Page 11.2-G.1

View of South Elevation

Figure G.2 Building "G"- Shed Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View of North Elevation
and Porch

October 8. 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "G" PICTURES

Page 11.2-G.2

Figure G.3 Building "G"- Shed Building

Figure G.4 Building "G"- Shed Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View of Porch Roof

4

View of Typical Door

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "G" PICTURES

Page 11.2-G.3

Figure G.5 Building "G"- Shed Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Typical Interior

October 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA



BUILDING "H" PICTURES

11.2 _ Appendix B- Photos of Existing Conditions

Page 11.2-H.1

Figure H.1 Building "H"- Maintenance Office/
Storage Extension

View of Maintenance Office

Figure H.2 Building "H"- Maintenance Office/
Storage Extension

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Storage Extension @
Connection to Kitchen

October 8. 2004

Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "H" PICTURES

Page 11.2-H.2

Figure H.3 Building "H"- Maintenance Office/
Storage Extension

Figure H.4 Building "H"- Maintenance Office/
Storage Extension

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of South Elevation

View of Roof

October 8. 2004
L.os Angeles. CA




Figure H.5 Building "H"- Maintenance Office/
Storage Extension

View Inside Storage Extension

Figure H.6 Building "H"- Maintenance Office/
Storage Extension

&

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View Inside Maintenance Office

_ October 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "I11" PICTURES

Figure 1.1.2 Building "I1"- Two Story Residence Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.2-11.1

Close-Up View of

S.W Balcony

October 8, 2004

~ Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "I1" PICTURES

Figure I.1.4 Building "I1"- Two Story Residence Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

Close-Up View of
Patio Screen Wall and Balcony

_October 8, 2004
[.os Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "I1" PICTURES

Figure 1.1.5 Building "I1"- Two Story Residence Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

v

Page 11.2-11.3

iew of Common Area
Lobby and Stair

October 8. 2004

“Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "I1" PICTURES

Figure 1.1.6 Building "[1"- Two Story Residence Building

Figure 1.1.7 Building "l1"- Two Story Residence Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Typical Interior
Kitchenette

View of Typical Interior

Bathroom
__October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA



11.2  Appendix B- Photos of Existing Conditions

BUILDING "I2"PICTURES

Page 11.2-12.1

il B
View of South Elevation
From Northwest

[.2.2 Building "I2"- Two Story Residence Building

Figure

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of West Elevation
From Southwest

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "I2" PICTURES

Figure 1.2.3 Building "I2"- Two Story Residence Building

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.2-12.2

View of Interior

~ Qctober 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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R e s o " s
Figure J.1 Building "J"- Bungalow

Page 11.2-].1

Figure 1.2 Building "J"- Bungalow

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Typical Rear Elevation

“Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "J" PICTURES

Figure J.4 Building "J"- Bungalow

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.2-].2

Typical Front Porch

__October 8, 2004
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BUILDING "J" PICTURES

Figure J.5 Building "J"- Bungalow

Figure 1.6 Building "J"- Bungalow

Palm Sprines Racquet Club Historic Report

View of Typical Bathroom

View of Typical Living Area.
Windowsill Detail

October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "J" PICTURES

Figure 1.7 Building "J"- Bungalow

Typical Fireplace

Figure 1.8 Building "J"- Bungalow

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

Typical Kitchen

October 8, 2004

~ Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "J" PICTURES

ey TR

Figure 1.9 Building "J"- Bungalow View of block with Patio Enclosure

Figure J.10 Building "J"- Bungalow Detail of Eave
Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report , ~ October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "J" PICTURES

Figure J.11 Building "I"- Bungalow

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report.
John Ash Group Architects

View of Lattice Screening

October 8§, 2004
Los Ange
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BUILDING "K" PICTURES

Figure K.2 Building "K"- Schiff House

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Front Entry Elevation

October 8, 2004

“Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "K" PICTURES

Entry View

Figure K.4 Building "K"- Schiff House

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report =~~~
John Ash Group Architects

Interior View

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "K" PICTURES

Figure K.5 Building "K"- Schiff House View of Pool

Figure K.6 Building "K"- Schiff House View of Pool Bar

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report October 8. 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "K" PICTURES

Figure K.8 Building "K"- Schiff House

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

View of Pool Bar

October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "K" PICTURES

Figure K.10 Building "K"- Schiff House View of Altered Original Bathroom

Palm Springs Racquet Club HistoricReport ~ October 8. 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "L1" PICTURES

Figure L1.1 Building "L1"- Boardroom 1

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.2-L1.1

e i

View of Building Front

[.os Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "L1" PICTURES

Figure L.1.2 Building "L1"- Boardroom 1

Figure L.1.3 Building "L 1"- Boardroom 1

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View of Main Meeting Room

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles. CA
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BUILDING "L2" PICTURES

Figure L2.2 Building "L2"- Boardroom 2

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.2-1.2.1

View of Porch @Front

October 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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BUILDING "L2" PICTURES

Figure 1.2.3 Building "L2"- Boardroom 2

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report.
John Ash Group Architects

View of Fireplace in Main Meeting Room

October 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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SITE FEATURE "M" PICTURES

Figure M.2 Site Feature M- Tennis Courts

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Tennis Courts 3 and 4 with
Additional 4 Courts

October 8, 2004
L.os Angeles, CA
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SITE FEATURE "M" PICTURES

Figure M.4 Site Feature M- Tennis Courts

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Pair of Courts @North
Property Line (North West Courts)

Los Angeles, CA
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SITE FEATURE "N" PICTURES

View Looking North

Figure N.2 Site Feature "N"- Main Pool

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

View Looking South at Farrell House

~ October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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SITE FEATURE "Q" PICTURES

Page 11.2-Q.1

—

“igure Q.1 Site Feature "Q"- Pool at Cottage Unit 66

{.I ub | Listoric RC[‘“H

Palm Springs R:
John Ash Group Architects

Pool View

October 8. 2004
Los Angeles. CA
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SITE FEATURE "R" PICTURES

| 'll’!i1ggin

iiﬁ

Figure R.1 Site Feature "R"- Spa SpaView
Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report , October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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11.2  Appendix B- Photos of Existing Conditions

SITE FEATURE "S" PICTURES

Figure S.1 Accessory Structure "S"- Security Shack Security Shack View

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report , , October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA
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SITE FEATURE "T" PICTURES

Figure T.2 Accessory Structure '

I'"- Netcher's Creek Foorbridge

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Front View

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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SITE FEATURE " U" PICTURES
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Figure U.1 Accessory Structure "U"- Gazebo

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

View of Gazebo

October 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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11.3 __ Appendix C- Historic Photographs

HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-1)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.3-H.1

October 8. 2004

Los Angeles, CA
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-2)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club HistoricReport October 8. 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles. CA
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-3)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-4)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report.

John Ash Group Architects
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1.3 Appendix C- Historic Photographs

HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-5)

Credit: Palm Soring Historical Societv

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.3-H.5

October 8. 2004
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-6)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Page 11.3-H.6
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alm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects
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}g_lSTORIC PHOTO (HIST-7)
I

redit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
t

John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.3-H.7

October 8. 2004
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-8)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racgquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.3-H.8

October 8, 2004
LLos Angeles, CA
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-9)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Page 11.3-1.9

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

October 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-10)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.3-H.10

October 8. 2004
Los Angeles, CA
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-11)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society
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.3 Appendix C- Historic Photographs
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-12)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Societv

FROM CHARLIE

We thought that now that we
are starting with a new group
of owners, you might like a
“Nostalgic Illustrated Review”
of what has gone on here since
1934 when we were way way
out of town with just a cow
path for a road. I remember
when Ralph Bellamy and 1
would ply County Highway
officials with drinks at the bar
dropping hints that our road
needed fixin’, They fixin'd it—
nght from the El Mirador
(which was way out of town
at that time) right up to the
RC’s northem boundary line.
The Racquet Club paid over
§3.000.00 to bnng water up
here but got it back over a per-
iod of years as people bought
n on the line. We also had to
bring the gas, telephone and
electric lines out here mostly at
our expense . . . anyway, who
cared as we were both movie
stars making lots of money.

I think the pictures will give
you a pretty good idea of the
history of the Racquet Club
without too much comment
from me . . . just a caption here
and there.

By the way . . . if you won-
der how we got the aerial pho-
tos of the Club: General Rosie
O'Donnell, an habitue of the
Racquet Club, was command-
g officer of March Field and
when he would send his aerial
photogs out on a practice as
signment, he'd tell them to
make a pass over Palm Springs
and to be sure to get some prac-
tice shots of the Racquet Club.
[ remember people saying,
"Why are those bombers cir-
cling the Club?”

Recognize the Bar?

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

Our new tennis pro is no stranger
to the Racquet Club—he is known
by, and very popular with, all the
Racquet Club members. At long
last Bill Davis has settled down to
being a tennis professional and given
up his avocation as “Real Estator.”
Now he is mainly interested in
developing tennis players, All we
need now is a few more tennis
courts, which | am happy to say is
being given some consideration.

One of our mose serious prob-
lems is that everyone now wants to
sit in the Garden Room. Eventually
we are going to have to limit the
size of parties in the Garden Room
and limit the time the table will be
held. It really infuristes members
waiting to be seated when tables are
empty and sometimes not used long
into the evening — or not at all
when members having reserved the
tables go to cocktail parties and
sometimes forget to show up.

Everyone seems to be tickled pink
to have Tony Rose back — and 1
should think they would — he cer-
tainly fits into our scheme of things
for dinner music and then the
“swing-swing” after dinner.

A Rule Book is being made up
that I hope will stick. If someone
can come up with a set of rules that
don’t have to be broken from time
to time, I will cat my hat—fight—
or switch!

We have many complaints about
our telephone service — we have
eleven trunk lines and several pri-
vate lines, with two operators most
of the time. If everyone that comes
w the Racgquet Club comes mastly
to transact their business and re-
ceive calls there is not much chance
for improvement, Maost of the prob-
lems come from members putting in
lonp-distance credit calls most of
the day — I don't have to tell you
how this ties up lines.

What T write are my thoughts
3 ;

October 8. 2004
3, CA

Los Angele
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-13)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Befors we had a Dining Room Coversd Bridge
(Hand built by Harry Oliver 1547)

Office 1938 Racqust Cleb 1944

Page 11.3-H.13
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-14)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report S October 8. 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles. CA
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HISTORIC PHOTO (HIST-15)

Credit: Palm Spring Historical Society

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects
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BUILDING PERMIT

10/09/1945 6 Bungalows by Albert Frey
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BUILDING PERMIT

08/27/1946 Addition to Kitchen

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT .

BUILDING

BUILDING OIPARTMENT, CITY OF FALM EPRINGE

) ,{.‘_?_TQ/JA » Are

- C—
e Kacgue

[e=mar =i

_H Sosfer
-
Adl, feo = 7.

iy Femimee

£l

Fita Zoma

=D

.

*P.';rim'm— s Warl '« ®a Dgne Remorks ond References

- of . )
/J:f/l,,l-’t e /e /(,..,,‘3.

A M Pl An

Trained 3 Sar 2R

f o~y
4 Lmmes, Mmtriinl WOy
ol Value of Work { Leme. st

gy MIT NO, 1} 2.}" PERMIT FEE § / 7.,.“,.

ner OR Lontractor /

- = /;/ ,

i 2197

t

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic R
—ems bl liige Dndb Ut L IHD M1SIOTIC f\L‘D{i"t - " :
JLIG I { klnm;r 82004

CA

L2t LR e ——

John Ash Group Architects ] \ :
_0s Angeles,



11.4 Appendix D- Select

BUILDING PERMIT

06/10/1947 3 Rental Units (Bungalow)

Ak s B OOPET Oin
Ll oaf pt WU ok SEL m

. APPLICATION FOR PERMIT .
BUILDING

BUNBING DIFsTTMENT, CITY OF FALM EPRINOS

A'/ f"/ S B /I’VC

Palm Springs Racquet Club Hij

1 Ash Group Architects

_ October

[.os Angele




11.4 Appendix D- Select Building Permit

Page 11.4 -4

BUILDING PERMIT
05/10/1949 3 Hotel Units (Bungalow)

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA



114  Appendix D- Select Building Permit Page 11.4 -5

BUILDING PERMIT

(6/29/1949  Addition to Charles Farrell Residence

"‘...,.“L‘Mm', - o

R e
A v AUM iCATE

@ .rucanon ror s &

EUILDING

BUILDING DEPARTWENRT, CITY OF PALM SPRINGS
T Latates

Peseription ! Work to Br Done—Remerks and Refarenass
& S -
. ""';../1..‘.; o F Ylhaaie,

- Pt

;'{-ﬁl-«\. 1.1
~"‘é"-'.

- -’?{f[ A}

” J
' Inateding - P —
Valve of Work ih'."' ‘:%,‘,‘,l,‘,,.f";!} | ) . 25

Mt NoZ g8 S v e 4]

r OF Comttather e o e emnn i

October 8, 2004

Architects Los .:?\21361’13':\;, CA




11.4 Appendix D- Select Building Permit

BUILDING PERMIT
(872471950 Dining Room Extension

ot

L

T T g LUTICAI. o #
‘. APPLICATICH FOR PERMIT

BUILDING

BUILCIHG c\!!uwm Eﬂ"’ of FALM SPRINGE

Log Frw B BI0

Cassipetur issme He

T

> Y ef,
1Dn&ghuniwm\|:5r8-. femaeris and
.' C- 8 o X 5
‘\_ ;_ /:J’ rav " -/ -’//'4‘
: oy =
3 -1( e 7
_? ,(',pﬂ/."’*ﬁ'v A Tenes .
‘Z
5 O L5 e
E St otal Value of Work !-w hlr :lmﬂi 3. 7

a2
Nosnnar 0. 47> 2—

e IT FEE §- 2-6-—"

f'} Contracior

S

, W—JKM

——grr R
sl W 3

Paim Sprines Racquet Club

Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Page

Cctober 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA

11.4 -6



114  Appendix D- Select Building Permit

l"x]m Springs Racquet Club Historic Report
ohn Ash Group Architects Los Angeles

BUILDING PERMIT

041771951 4 Room Dwellings (Bungalow) by Clark and Frey

. APPLICATION FOR PERMIT .
BUILDING

BUILDIMG DIFPARTMENT, CITY OF PALM SPRINGS
o s a———

UL et tlae e
e o iR L.?//‘#_#_
4’ -
“ Fitmain h/-“-(/

;7 /l. 'd ﬁ,g-f_[flit""
R TR e et
[ /rd s Feey

Tt ¢ l-n- e

Lot

[ermy T ey tem
i o2y e PT AT
CERR Y di g pl oot
e T -’t-lh-flf
ol L} 1/ J]
2\t

Frami
- 7ﬂ
2 ! r—z..-.::.-—‘( e

Deserintin . of Vit 1y Be Dure Kemorks ond References

_ g

A g lelllany

] J ,,I’.,ru‘
. £ winf

.

i
3 Totol Volue of Work { jom ST wems, s./t’f.u_

n-na-.

PERAMIT O, AR PERMIT FEE § _j_-L..

Owner OR Coniraetar

8

_October &,

'E\

04



&M&_Stﬂccl Building Permit

BUILDING PERMIT

042041951 4 Room Dwellings (Bungalow) by C]

. APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

BUILDING

BUILDIKG DEFARTMEINRT, CITY OF PALM EFRINGS

ark and Frey

s\
/

ol . e fiteeen

| 4, ¥

riphwn @i vigek 190 Be Done kemarks ond Reference
e .

- -
« -

ey

7
¥,

v

v | G227 8

PERMIT PEE B

Palm Springs Racquet Club Hi storic Report

John Ash Group Architects

Page 11.4 -8

Qctober 8, 2004
Los Angeles, CA



~~— Appendix p
D&/ 471«
624 1968 C

UnNstrucy \\"'*’- '-"". PF Ia \III

R0om Bu.wmm-'

( Onnected ¢

Ownei a
- - . o

D = —

v o ]tum['ﬁ?‘

o] P+ 3 -
' 2 ; - iy
v "\“—.i SO0 ‘ AR ¥

) e =

o cemsirwel the hareln h : . -;-_’_. —‘1“
b horei; granied. 2
donre with 1

srod without Inspaciion,

vy C-”r of Polm Springs. Na b h gﬁ .-f'

‘.

‘ } AR

m“ muv‘ﬂﬂOl'O’l""‘”}"
ns ;nunn-hu_ .- Fjem Ghe =-' SRR 18 on AN

-mk os

b KBk

E11218

> Farre]) ]




11.4  Appendix D- Select Building Permit

09/05/1

‘ . AR
bad RITII

- Nare |

._{‘

BUILDING PERMIT

985 Meeting Room Addition at Farrell House)

CITY OF PALM SPRINGS BN DING PERAMIT

e [~y

™y

vesalf mem

e il e B F,

o 0 oag
—

oo Jaed Boa 7, A (
P Lo = T i o
Sy ] 14y e o

- e AR e e

R g i P IO el
X

- !

. e b, e

MPOR] AN
asmmm i .

\ {’ .
L -
Mu\lu&s}-ﬂ; T W el

Palm Springs Racauet Club Historic Report

October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA



APPENDIX E



Appendix E- 1982 Citv of Palm Sprines Historic Survey

W
'

Page 11.

HISTORIC SURVEY

SURYEY CRITERIA FOR INDIVIDUAL STRUCTURES
Age Points
I8FZT890 v v v i v & wm s @ W R s § & @ 10
PBO=0HI7 o v vm o™ e s & ndonim s 5 @ @ aE § 8
YRIB=TH88 ., . vow s b oy 5 % 6w e s % § b et E 4 6 7
19301846 o 0 n v v womce i & & mod e de e e A e e 4
LOGF-PrESent. & v amcwmomin & sow s o inia 5 g ww s 2

National/State/Region®! . . . . . . v v v v v v et 3 Z
ESCRY v i 6.3 3 s @io 5 5 S B R E 8§ oo ox ey TE
Architectura? Quality FRTS '

1. HNeture of detail work b P

2. Nature of materials P SO

Undgue . .+ v cov w0 v P o e la B B REA S § 5
BXCAIIONt: . s s s s s E @ Mo E § L AR DIWE » 3 &
OO0 5 A AsE M Ad § PEm @D wElE & i e e e @ 3
FATE 5 3 5 5 3w 9ia 3 § Vobh e m |5 & wompminn # = 2

522 s s v s e ws 4 v sémmn p 8|y FE G & & 5 5 .‘
s = N Y TR L - S
Bel o o v ow e B o e e e B B R e R W R B # U 2 =
Wh o o womommwn 6 0w wm min 5 8| 6 kw0 wia 4 & @ 1
Building Modification

BFIgHRl & 50 sl E e s i SlRmEE S A ¢ B 4 )
Firnor Hodifteation ™% o w wiw w5 ¢ wla e o 9 srs & & o 3 Z
TORAT CHATR < & o o v o i s 5 5 wilw il 5 & & w s s : S

Neighborhood Quality

Neighborhoed = 3 or_mere Block TR IEDS 4
Block = 1 £ulBTock . . . . . v v v v o m e e s owe e 3
Street €72 facing @dges . . . « . v v v v e e e e e s 2
fidividual = single . . . . . . ... .. i g 5 1

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA



11.5 Appendix E- 1982 Citv of Palm Springs Historic Survey

Page 11.5-2

MASTER FILE

HISTORIC SURVEY

State of Californis — The Resources Agency
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION

HISTORIC RESOURCES DATA ENCODING SHEET

NOTE: The numbers in parenthesas indicate sither the number of characters {letters, numbers, punctuation marks, spaces) that may

be entered or the number of lines that may be checked,

1. Ser Ng, = # ls

- -

City Zip {4}  Form No. (1-4)  Prop. No. (0-4)

USGS Quad Map Na. (4!

o824

2, UT™M Zane (2) Easting {6} Narthing (71
& Lz Jae  mrue Ben
B
c
o

3. Property Name:

Common Name (3017-,

{ Lz
v d 4
Historic Name {40)1 | i
. tir §

Parcel No, {0-17) s &4 =D Wl ea ¢ ‘.‘i’":*';

4, Address:
e =2 77

Number (05

Srreet Name {4-20}

Nearest Cross Street (0-201/

City/Town {3-20)
s i i

Zip code (5)

County 34erter designator (31

5. Type of Dwnership (+-7)

e TH Rk BIOWRY
____ 2 federai
— Ol state

6 Present Use {1-6):

1} unknown
2| commercial

30 3 residential

7. Year ot Initial Co

individuz! Froperty (4}
District {8

\f'll:lhi.‘“i of

City/Toven ('}

b 4) private
e B COURLY
p— R

7} specia! district

.4} private non-comm.
- 5) public
o 8} none

struction;

8. Architect{s) (0-25)

s
Builder(51{0 25): —

a, il

JPR B80 {Ruy, 12/83)

10. Hegistration Stetus {1}:

w1 listed - gate (B f.L.

— 2} determined eligible ~
P L < B
~_3} appears aligible

.B) may become sligibie
.5} eligibiz logal listing

e B} ineticible for atove

e N Ermined

11.  Property Given Registration Status as (1}

"

2} ;vdividual property
—3} both of above

ZH part of district

12.  NR Class Category (T4

1} district — Mo, of properiss (0:3)

2} mite
73} buitding
— 4] structure
5] obiject

13.  Otner Registration (0-8)

— iHistoric Am, Blg. Sucvey _6) Cal. Histarical Landmark
—2) Historic Am, Eng. Rec. _._7} Caunty PL of Hist. Interest
—3) National Hist. Landmark__8} Loeal Listing

¢ ___4) Stare Historic Park

4. Property Atsibutes

e 1) unknown

ses. 2) sing, family piog,

—— 2} mult, family prap.
~—-4} ancitiary blg,

—-8) hotel/mows!

o B} cOmm, Blg. 13 5t

e 7} cOrnm, blg. aver 3 st.

— Bl industrial big.

e 3} pubdic utility blg.
e 10 thestre

11} enginoering stiuct

Y21 civic auditorium

13} cmnty entrisoc, hall

141 government blg

. 15} educational blg,

. 18} refigious blg.

— 171 R/R dapot

= 18} train

19} bridge

=20} tanalfaquaduct
.21} dam

15,  Architectural Plans
and Specifications. _

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

.9} County/Regilana! Park
~—-b) other

—22) lake/riverireservolr

—23) ship

i) lighthouse

28] amusement park

26} monument/mural/gravestons

— 271 faik art

__ 28} street furniture

29} landscape architr.

—30) treesivegetation

—31) urban open space

__32) rura! apen space

33} farm/ranch

— 34} military property

—-38) CCCWPA structure

e 3G} 03h0IC Minority property
ethnit group (5201

37 highway Arail
— 3B} women’s property
—AD} comatery

—_39} other

Yo 7 o

October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA



11.5 Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey

Page |

" NON-ARCHITECTURAL

SURVEY FORM

HISTORIC SURVEY

4 - "7
o . 2.2 'I‘Irf
2 (
27
3 P
t e L]
.J:’__,(‘
[ Vh |
‘ ‘
.
i 3 | [® = —
¥ ‘ S
L
S USSP ———
|
el
.
|
Lon
} _
|
|-
|
- — 1. — WSS

Palm Springs Racquet Club Histe

oric Report

John Ash Group Architects

4d




11.5 Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey Page 11.5-4

HISTORIC SURVEY

Al < P starn LT

- W Clwb Hae beew Guitr T¥Crm. Perty
e e g2 sl rornseale e

0419[];@/ Are— W é—&x—vf Loawia.a bC—vv?b{frc 7
Ww&» Aunsl syl ye s ; tpanid. AE‘
CW ubm o (A J’W—Qz ztzzéé.— ‘KMBA,Q; ,3.“{(_
hucel. grilec  aplelt ahoatrapr ford Witk Crupasitis,
&W/ﬂp, M«— “Urlndihry ,’thﬂ-—’-,:a&c—c,/t_. /—,‘ﬂ}_,t__

g

CF? il f '(f'tj‘ué'/ (‘u—eo b Tlreo A g Ane. _yfwﬁ/ Xuf, "
p g ot
‘/L// Ww;% Pt Lo ';gww.ﬁu/ Wit e é’-‘ufmﬂ
/Wu'ﬂmavéw]- e “’//"'"r. v Bl g u’jc Aeira ane alvp

0‘1‘31,4'—&1’ QM'?{W A é/k, vamded. T ovot /ﬂta.ww_. vzt

“Truith 7 %7(1% and otiecy M‘w —T;LLQ.L..‘-‘IIL,M-{‘-&”"T]
Aave ﬁﬂxf-{o b ot 'f(' C/fo/v 3 —z,w[é Thee, u(,[:,/w
/t“MW%, %,U e - Cuthe Ao e # «:@m;,m
Sotl L1 Theae f'),u,t.zfu»\fg o AheChantes %‘W
Hnot V' it arnund 1550 Bt (atetormen Kot
,Llnwef 2 Yl u,u,,-L T” f«r?,/ 46&3—:&—&@ Wtk tored
e f’,mf ,3/»_.*{;{_,/ Nerd w(;‘.ﬁ—/_ ,,ga,mx awz(,}w{gk, faae
"-U;‘é . (,f}/;i‘f‘ Fr it L‘%?A B b c‘%/tm M liolee ety
ad ;.»&uﬁ e wlhiars clert fra arne-, A+ umzwfhfa.“fw boyes
LJ,M ,L;wi\ et /; tte - “m« A el @ﬁm:%/ Y; f,uu,z

%p j du,_ ,?w—ba'f telude « %o—;—d,,«—m‘%
/Wu_sa -fwfén mw at re /Dmf‘— Spanned. tialie

Jum-uj Lo A /LJRLF’ :—:-f«”‘;\"‘ Tt /tff:d?uzfe:[ Lo Frate
fnwﬁbu d o A3 0 T(D,ozhw Mot nrle the olub Lot Palivas

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report Qctober 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA



‘_-
| (-
N

Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey _Pagell.5-5

HISTORIC SURVEY

Hiploowt- Uladn | (ool Lertd muot T ilon .,57;#?, Spdildii.
f e oo ‘

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report T October 8, 2004
John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA




11.5 Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey

HISTORIC SURVEY

KiVEH

S LUUN Y

NON-AR

URIC RESOURLCES SURVEY

CHITECTURAL

Structure | !
i
L . —
§ Fi
L e
= 1

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

L.OS 4

ngeles, C

Page 11.3-6

_October 8, 2004



11.5  Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey

“"NON-ARCHITECTURAL
SURVEY FORM

HISTORIC SURVEY

Page 11.5-7

i .l'.-
i e .
i
i
" - el
dir =
I
|
- et me—— N !
| — g
|
e |

Palm Springs Racg

John Ash Group Archit

October 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA



11.5 Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey

h

Page 11.5-8

HISTORIC SURVEY

RESEARCH Researcher ___ e Date / e
IS -87 f-Sf enliR~ES
Construction =7 _ = =g Veatmatas | FOURCES
cate [ Factual
ARCHITECT
BUILDER
ORIGINAL DWNER
IMPORTANT OWNERS
OTHER HISTORIC ASSOCIATIONS
1S THE STRUCTURE
—.| Onthe original sile? Criginal Agdress
— | Movea?
L unsue -
1S THE PROPERTY Parcel Number
1___] in public ownerahip?
L n private ownership? L
PHESENT OWNER (if known) HiH] same ag adgress on front
Name — I —  _Address: ______ e —
OFFICE USE Fecorcer ____ s Date

MAIN THEME
—_—
1 | Arehitecture
L___ Arts 8 Loisure
| Economic/indusirial
|| Expioration/Sottiament
’ l’._;murn:!w"l
— Mililary
4 Religion
i Sogcinl'‘Education

Jivigual nomination

sirict nominaton

THREATS TC SITE
. None known
Privzie development
| 2("""9
nelalism

Other

HISTORIC RESOURCE AND LANDMARK STATUS

! inciudad by State Office of Hist. Presv

YES NO "YES NO

- HABS !

| |HAER b

I NR ! '
SHL

Recommended by cistrict review committes
Recommended by County Hist. Commission

(%]
=]

ADDHTIONAL SOURCES: thooks, documants, 1ecords, parsonal interviews include dales)

Approx. property size {It}

Frontage Deptt

Or approx  acréaans

October 8, 2004

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report
John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA



.J\

Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey Page 11.5-9

HISTORIC SURVEY

© NON-ARCHITECTURAL ;
SURVEY FORM >

; .-’-\-r"-"* . ! A,

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report.

John Ash Group Architects



L

Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey

Page 11.5-10

HISTORIC SURVEY

2004

Los Angeles, CA



11.5  Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Surve

" -

NTY HISTCRIC

SURVEY FORM _

E COUR RESOURCES SURVE
ARCHITECTURAL

HISTORIC

SURVEY

Page 11.5-11

Bt ) ¥
Cit .
Aren & ZIF I
- 151
name i
Pt
da
3LITY
- —— st e’

ARCHITE [=F E
4 ,

Verna

ernacula

i ey
| | 'taliana

ren

Eas

ict AN (o g

|
/
1S
{

Palm Springs Racguet Club Historic Report

John Ash Group Architects

QOctober 8, 2004

Los Angeles, CA



11.5 Appendix E- 1982 Citv of Palm Springs Historic Survey Page 11.3-12

HISTORIC SURVEY

£ COUNTY HISTORIC RES

ARCHITECTURAL
SURVEY FORM

- G TR 4

nameg i

[ Eo-dtalgls

E Hip i Half-Hipped | Gablet {___JShed

Palm Springs Racquet Club HistoricReport October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA



11.5  Appendix E- 1982 City of Palm Springs Historic Survey Page 11.5-13

Palm Springs Racguet (

HISTORIC SURVEY

DE COUNTY HISTORIC RESQURCES
ARCHITECTURAL
_SURVEY FORM

-
’ y ]

i

{

AR E L STYLE

[ P
3 8 9

i ri B

H qr

}

“lub Historic Repoit e October 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects Los Angeles, CA



11.5

Appendix E- 1982 Citv of Palm Springes Historic Survey

Page 11.5-14

HISTORIC SURVEY

/ /
RESEARCH Researcher | TS AU (SR P
f— q e
I . SOURCES
Construction - L £stimated L =
gater . 7738 1 |Facwal ‘:, -
~ - - U

ARCHITECT
BUILDER
QRIGINAL DWNER
IMPORTANT OWNERS

Q '

39 A I FL i PP s P

P‘E’/’T A £ 4/ =

OTHER HISTORIC ASSOCIARDMS
S THE STRUCTURE
1 Onthe eriginal sa4e? Orignal Adoress
| Moved?
‘_.‘1 Unsure SR B e e T
IS THE PROPERTY Parcel Number:
Bic awoership?

in private pwnership? P TGS e =,

PHESENT ODWNEF (+f knawn| L__vz sdAmMe As address on front

OFFICE USE

Recorder

Cate

MAIN THEME

.| Architecture

r

4 Ans & Leisure

romination

namination

HISTORIC RESOURCE AND LANDMARK STATUS

i . B
b i | Recommended by district review commilias

Aty Commission

ice of Hist. Presy

]

. D

slopment

. ADDITIONAL SDURSES, |

books documents

sgeorts. pessonal interviews, ingluse dates;

Gr appros goresqe -

Palm Springs Racquet Club Historic Report

Qctober 8, 2004

John Ash Group Architects

Los Angeles, CA






